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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
. 603*271-4501 1-800-852-334S Ext. 4S01
Fax; 603-271*4827 TOD Access: 1-800-735-2964

www.dhhs.nh.gov

May 14. 2020

His Excellency. Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with Lamprey Health Care. Inc. (VC#177677-R001). Newmarket,
NH in the amount of $88,151 for primary health care services for underserved. low-income and
homeless individuals, effective upon Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2021.
13.04% Federal Funds. 86.96% General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Years 2020 and 2021. with
the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
state fiscal years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-90-902010-5190 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH. BUREAU OF POPULATION HEALTH AND
COMMUNITY SERVICES, MATERNAL - CHILD HEALTH 13.04% FEDERAL AND 86.96%
GENERAL

State

Fiscal Year

Class /

Account
Class Title Job Number Total Amount

2020 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080105 $17,630

2021 102-500731 Contracts for Prog Svc 90080105 $70,521

Total $88,151

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to provide homeless individuals located in the Nashua and
the Greater Nashua area access to comprehensive primary health care services that include
preventive and ongoing health care for acute and chronic health conditions for people of all ages,
including pregnant women, children, adolescents, adults, and the elderly.

Primary and preventive health care services are provided to underserved, low-income
individuals who experience barriers to accessing health care due to issues such as lack of
insurance, inability to pay. limited language proficiency, suffering from homelessness and
geographic isolation. This contract specifically supports services to individuals who are homeless
or at risk for homelessness and do not have a primary care provider, or are estranged from their
primary care provider due to issues related to transiency, untreated mental health and substance
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abuse issues, and perceived non-compliance which have fractured relationships with primary care
providers over time.

Approximately 240 Individuals will be served from June 2020 to June 30, 2021.

The Contractor will utilize these funds to expand healthcare access to Nashua's homeless
population by establishing a new mobile health clinic 4 hours per week at the Nashua Soup
Kitchen and Shelter. The contractor will provide a medical team (medical provider, nurse, care
coordinator), mobile equipment, and supplies on site to provide health care in a room within the
shelter itself. The medical team will work in collaboration with Nashua Soup Kitchen and Shelter
staff to identify residents who are in need of primary care services at the time of intake and will
encourage connection to the clinic's integrated and coordinated medical, behavioral and social
services.

The Department will monitor contracted services using the performance measures
outlined in Exhibit B-1, Reporting Metrics, by reviewing the Contractors historical baseline data
and comparing that to the reported metrics to ensure there is stability or ah' increase to the
percentage of patients served.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the Department's website from 3/17/2020
through 4/21/2020. The Department received one (1) response that was reviewed and scored by
a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

Should the Governor and Council not authorize this request the Departrnent may be
unable to ensure preventive and regular health care for acute and chronic health conditions for
homeless or low income individuals of all ages, including pregnant women, children, adolescents,
adults, and the elderly throughout Nashua and the Greater Nashua area.

Area served: Amherst, Brookline. Hollis, Hudson, Litchfield, Lyndeborough, Mason,
Merrlmack, Milford, Mont Vemon, Nashua, Pelham, and Wilton.

Source of Funds: CFDA #93.994, FAIN # B04MC33853

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, additional General Funds
will not be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Lori A. Shibinette

'Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Office of Business Operations

Contracts & Procurement Unit

^^^^_^^^^^ummar^^Scoring^Shee^^^^^^^^^_

Primary Cars for the Homeless in

Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area

RFA Name

RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRiMA

RFA Number Reviewer Names

Shan Campbeii - Program Evaiuation Spedaiist

Bidder Name
Pass/Fall Points Actual Points

2
' Rhonda Sie^ei - Administrator ii

Lamprey Health Care 260 230 Ann Marie Mercuri - Public Health Nurse Consult



FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject:^RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA (Primary Care for the Homeless in Nashua and the Greater Nashua
Area)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT
The Stale of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree aa follows;

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENTIFICATION.

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857

1.3 . Contractor Name

Lamprey Health Care, Inc.

1.4 Contractor Address

128Rte27

Raymond, NH 03077

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 895-3351

1.6 Account Number

05-95-90-902()lO-5190

1.7 Coinplclion Dutc

June 30.2021

1.8 Price Limitation

$88,151

1.9 Contracting Officer for Stale Agency

Nathan D. White, Director

1.10 Stale Agency Telephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

Dale: S|t>|2d£)
1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

6A(6o<2ij C-To

1.13 StatcAge^'Signature 1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Siguntory

•  fflUn(ST
•1.15 Approval by the N.H. Dcpanmcni of Admimsiration. Division of Personnel (i/'applicahic)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by tlic Attorney Genera! (Fonn, Siibsiaoce and Execution) (ifapplicable)

By:^ IHoA-dAoM On: May 26, 2020
1.17 Approv.il by the Governor and Executive Council (if applicable)

G&C Item number: C&C Meeting Date;
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2. SERVICES TO. BE'PERFORMED. The State of New
Hamp>hire, acting tHrough the agency idehtlfied in block L.l
('•State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3
'("Contractor") to pcrforin', and the Cdnlractor.sha]|'pcrfomi,'th'e
work or sale of goods, of both;-identified andmore particularly
described .in the attached .EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
hereiii.by reference ("Services").

3.. EFFECrrVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVrCES.
3.1 Nofwithstandiiig any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Cot^cil ofthe State of New Hampshii^e,.if applicable,
this Agfeeinenl, and all obligations of the partiw hercunderi shall
bccoine effective oh the date .the Governor and-Executive
Council approve this Agreement as indicated in'block hi 7,
unlcss.no such approval is required, in which case.the Agreement
shall, become effective oh the date the Agreement is signed' by
the State Agency as shown in block 1.-13 ("EfTcctive Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Efiective Date, all Servlces-perfprmed by the Contractor prior to
the Effective Date .shall ,be peiformed ai the sole risk of the
Contractor, and ,in the event that this Agreement'does not become
effective, the Slate-shall have ho liability io tiie-Cbntractor,
including without, limitation, any' obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred of Services performed.
Contractor must coriiplctc all Service's by the'.Gomplction Date
specified in block i.7..

4. CONDITfONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision,'of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of. the. State hereunder, including,
without, limitation, the continuance of payments hereundcr,.arc
contingent upon' the availability and continued apprdpriatioh of
hinds affected by any state or federal legislative or .executive
action thar reduces, eliminates of otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of fimditig for this Agreement and
the Scope for-Scrvicc.s provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in
part. -In no event shall the-State be liable fbr .any .payments
hcrcundcf in excess of sucli available appropriaicdTunds. lii the.
.event of a'reduction or termination-of appropriated hinds, the
State shairhayc the right to withhold payment until such huids
become available,- if ever, and shall have the right.to reduce or.
terniinatc thC'Services under this Agrcctncnt immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of s'uch'rcductipn of tcnfiihatioh,
The State shall hot be required to ti;ahs.fcr funds, frbin any other
account or source to the Account identified in bloc.lc 1.6 iii the
event funds.in that Acco,unt are reduced or unavailable^,

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/-

PA.YMENT.
5.1 The contract price, method of p'ayhaent, and terms of payment
are identified-.and more .particultu-ly described ih-.EXHLBlT C"
which is incorporated herein by referehce.:
5.2 Thepaymenl bythe State of the coiitract price shall be the
bhly'ahd the complete feimbufse'ment'to the Contractor fofalf
expense's; of whatever d'aturc incurred by thejCbntractor.iu the
performance hereof,- an*d shall' be the only -and the complete

compehsaiibn to,the Contractor for thclServices; The State shall
have no liability.to the Contractor other than'the contract price.
.5.3_ The State rcserv'cs the right to oflscl from any..amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or perfn'ittcd by NJ-i' RSA gpT
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to "the.
contracy, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances,' in' lib
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or, actualiy'madc
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in'blpck 1.''8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR VVtTH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYIVlEiNT
OPPORTUNITY'.
6.1 In,.conriecfioh with the perfonfiuncc of the Scmces, .ih'c
Contractor- shall comply with ail applicable statutes,, laws,
regulations,,and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation /or duty upon" the,
Conti-actor, including; but not lim'iicd to, civij rights and,'equal
employnient opppilunity laws. In'addition, if this Agrcemenfis
funded in any part by monies of the United States, the Cpntraciof.
shall corfiply.with all federal executive orders, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations arid guidelines as';ihe
State or the Unlted States issue to irnplemcnt these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all, applicable ihtcllcbmal
property laws.

6.2 During the term of this A^ecrhcnt, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment'
because of face, color, religion, creed, age; sex, handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take afFinmative'action.to.
prevent such discriminatipn.
6.3,. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United Staie's.
access ip any ofthe Contractor's books, records and accounisTor
tlK piirposc of ascertaining compliance .with all rules, regulations-
and orders, and the covenants, terms and' conditions' of this.
A^ement. "

7. PEi^ONNEL.
7.1 The Ccnti^ctor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to pcrforin the ScrN'ices. The Contractor warranis.ibat
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform, the Services, and shall be properly licensed and
otherwise authorized to do so undef.aH applicable la.ws. '
7.2 Unless o.thcrNvisc authorized .in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for-a period' of six (6) mpnths after the'
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire; and
shall npt permit any subconu-octor pf other person, firm or
•corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort- to
perform.the Services to hire; any person who is a Stute-employce
or official, who Is,materially-involved in .the .procurement,
administralioh or perfonharicc of this Agreement. This
provision shali survive terminatipriof this Agreement.
7.3 ThriCpntnictingOfTicef specified in block L9, pr.his of her'
.successpf, Shall be the State's representative.. In the event pf any
^dispme r'conceming the iuie^-pretatiop of this Agreement, the
Cphtracli.ng Officer's decisi.oh shall be final for the S,tate,
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8,EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
iK Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contiiiclor shall constitute'an,event of default hereunder'('*'Evcht
ofpefault");
8.1.1 failure, to perfohti the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8; 1.2 failure to submit any report required hcreundef; and/or
8.1.3.failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occuitcnce of any Event of default, thc State rnay
take any one, or more,-or all, .of the following actions:
,8.-2;hgive the Gontractor a .written notice specifying the Event of
Defauli and requiring it to be remedied within, inihe absence of
:a greater or lesser specification of timCj thirty (30) days from the
date of the notice; and if the Event of Do fault is not timely cured,

terminate this A^eeinent, effective twc'(2) days;after giving the
Contractor notice ofterinination;
8.2.2 give the Gontractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion pfithe contract price
vvhich would otherwise accrue to the Gontractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such tinie' as the State
determines that the Contractor'has cured the'Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations ilie State may
.ow'c io the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Event of Default; andyor
8.-2.'4 give the'Cohuractor a v/ritten notice specifying'the Event of
•Default, treat the Agreement as brwchc.d, tcrrhinatc thc''
Agrecmehtand pursue any of its remcdies al law or in equity, or
•both.

8.3; No failure by the Stale to enforce any provisions hereof after
•any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its'rights with
regard to that Event qf Default, or any subsequent Event'of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and

■all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
' Default on the part of the Contractor;

TERMINATION.
•9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph'8, the St^e'.riwy; afics sole
'discretion, terminate the j^gi-eement for any reason, in whole of
ih pan, by-tblrty (30) days written notice to the Contractor that

"the State is exercising its option to leiminatc the Agreement. .
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any .reason other than tlie completioh of tlie Services, .the

•Contractor'Shall, at . the Slate's discretion, deliver to the
Contracting Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the.date
of lemiinotion, a report C'Tcfminatipn Report'') describing in
detail;all Services performed,..and the contract.price earned, to
.and including the date of tcmiinaiion. Thefomi, subject mailer,
content, and number of copies of the •"Tcfniihatipn Rep'ort shall
be identical to those of any Filial Report described.in'ihe attached
EXHIBIT Bi.ln addition, at the State's discretion, the Contractor,
shall, "within 15 . days qfnotice o f early termination, develop" and
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submit to the State a Transition Plan 'for services lin'der the
Agreement.

■ 10. DATA/ACCESS/COiNFn>ENTlALiTY/\
PRESERVATION,
10.1 As.used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mcan;all
information and things developed or obtained during the
peffonnance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, ail studies, reports,
files; formulae, surveys,* maps, chart's, sound recdrdin'g's,"video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, dfawing.5, analyses, graphic:
rcpresentations, cornputer programs, corhputer printouts,,notes, •
ieiters,* memoranda, papers, and docurncnts, all whether
finished or unfinished.
10.2 AU..data and anj^ property which has been received fro'm,
the Stale or pia*chascd-\vith funds provided for that purpose
undcr'this Agreement; shall be the property of the State, and"
shall be'retumcd to the State upfoti demand or upon termination
of this. Agreement for any reason.
10.3;Confidentialitypfdata shall bpgovemc'dbyN.H. RSA
chapter,91;-A or other existing law. Difolosufc of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

11: CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE, ilfi the
perfomiahce-bf this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
ah independent coriiractor, and is "neither .an agent nbf ah
employee of the State. Neiihcr-.ihc Contractor" nor any of its
oiTicers, employees, agents,or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' "compcnsatioh or
other efriplumenis provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSlGNMENT/DELEGAtlONVSUBCONTRACTS.
ii.l The Contractor shalj. not assign, or othenvise iransfej'.ahy
iniefesl in this;Agreement without tlic prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (15) days prior to •
the assignment, and a witten consent of the State'. For piirposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall cdhstitute
assignrnent "Chatigc of Control" means (a) merger, ,
consplidatipn, or a transaction or series offeiated tranVaction's in
v/hich a third .party, together with its affiliates, becomes the
direct.br indirect owner o'f fifty perccnt..(50%) or more of'thc;
.voting, shares or similar equity interests; or'combined voting,
povyer of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or subslantial ly all
of the assets of the Contractor.
.1.2.2 None of tlie Services shall be subcontracted by the
Contractor without prior \Kfittcn notice and consent of the State. .
The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts andassigniiieni
agrcements'and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
In a s'ubcohtraci or an assignment agreementpo which it is not'a"
party.

j3v INDEMNiFlCATION. Unless othcnvisc exempted by.lnw,,
the Contractor shall indcmjtify and hold h^niless the. State, its

•officers and •employees, from and against any and all clairris,
liabilities and costs for any persbnal injury of property damages,,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its officers or eniployees. which arise out of.(or which
may be claimed to ;arise out "of) the acts of omission of the
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Contractor, or-subcontractors, iricludirig but not'limited to the
negligence,.reckless or intentional conduct. ;The State shall not
be liable for any costs incuired by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph'! 3. Ndtwithstandirig the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is'hereby reserved to the
State; This covenapi in paragraph 13 shall sur\'ive the
termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The ContiBCtor shall, at, iLs- sole expense, . obtain and
continuously .maintain in force, and. shall require any
subcontractor, or assigiice to obtain .and maintain ih forcCj the
following insurance:'
14.1;.l commercial general.liabiH^ insurahce against all claims
of bodilyinjury, death or property damage, in amounts of not

less than, $1,060,0.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000'aggregate
or excess; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subparagra'ph 10.2-hercin, in an amount not less^than
80% of the whole rcplaccmcnl value of the property.
14.2 The policies'described in siibparagraph 1.4.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for'use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Deparimcnt^pf insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed In the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to .the Contracting Officer
identified:in block 1:9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s),of
insurance for all' insurance required' under this Agreement
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his^of her successor, 'certificate(s) of insurance
for all Tcnewal(s) onnsiirahcc required under tins Agreement ho
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The ,ccitificatc(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof sliall be attached and arc incorporated herein^by
reference..'

,15. WORKERS'COMPEISSATIpN.
15.1 -By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
.and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or e.xempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A {"PVorkers'-
Compensaihn ").
\ 5.-2 To the extent the Contractor .is .subject to. the requircmehts
•of N.H. RSA chapter 28r-Ai .Contractor- shall .maintain, and
require any subcontractor'pr assignee, to .secure and ma'intaih,
payment p'f Workers' Compensation In connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant tOthis
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in'block 1:9. or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and'ahy applicable renevyal(s) thereof," .which shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. The Slate,
shall not.'be .'responsible for payineht of any Workers'
Cornpcnsation'prerhiums or for any other claim-or benefit for
Contractor, • or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might ari-se under, applicable _Stme'of New Hampshire
Workers' Compe'nsatlon lows ui connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreernen't.

1.6. NOTICE. Any notice by a .party hereto ".to the other party,
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the rime
of inailing by certified mail, postage prepaid,rin a^United States •
Post Of^ce addressed to the'parties at the .nddrtisscs given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

17. AMENDMEIVT. This Agreement may bc'umcndcd, vyaivpd
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the.
parties hereto and only af^er approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Goycmbr and Executive Council pf^
the^Statc of'New Hampshire .uiiless no such.approval is required
under the circumstances purSuant,lo State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.Th'S Agreement .shail
be gpvcmed, interpreted and construed In 'accordance with the

laws of the Stale of New Hampshire.'and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and ̂ sign's. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutiial Intent, and rio mlc
of construction shall be applied agai nst or iri favor of any'part)\
Any actions arising out of this Agree'tneni shall'be brought a'rid
maintained ih New Hamp'shire'Superior Court which shall have,
exclusi.ve jurisdictioh thereof.

19. CONFLiCTING TERMS. In-the-event-of-a conflict
between the terms of this P-37.romi,(as modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/ot attachments and amendment thereof, thc-jcrms "of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The pafijes. heretb^do n'pt intend to,
benefit- any third parties and this'-Agreement shall not be
construed to confer'any such benefit;

21. UEADINCiS. thc;hcadmgs throughout tiic Agreement are
for rcfcrehcc piirppscs' pMy, and the words contained Uierein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify.o'r aid in the;
interpretation, construction or.meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.'

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS.- Additionah or .modifying
'provisions set,forth in the attached EXHIBIT A'orc incorporated-
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of this
.Agreement 'arc held by a court of competent jurisdictiipn to be
co'ntfary.to any state or-federa) law, the remaining provisiohs'of
this Agreement will remain in ftill force and effect;

24., ENTIRE AOEEEMENT..This Agreement, which may be
executed,in a number OT couhterparts, each of which shal( be'
deehied 00 original, constitutes the entire -agreemcht.and
understanding :bel\veen the pa"rtie.s, and, supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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5r
7:-r-iNew Hampshire bepartment of Health and Human Services

Primary Qare for the Homeless In Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area
EXHIBITA

REVISIONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS

1. Revisions to Form P-37, Generair Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 12, Assjgnment/Delegatiph/Subcx)ntracts, is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows; ' - ■ .

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with .those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to. be performed
and how corrective action shall be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is inadequate. The Contractor shall, manage the
subcontractor's performance on an ongoing basis and take corrective
actiop as necessary. The Contractor shall arinually provide the State with
a list of all subcontractors'provided :f6r under this Agreement and notify
the .State of ariy inadequate subcontractor performance.

•8f:A-2P20-pPHS-p5-PRIKW Exhibit A .- Revisions to.Slandard Contract Provisions Contractor initials

■cU/OHH^i2,oi9 Ragel of'l Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Primary Care for the Homeless iri Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area

EXHIBITS

Scope of Services'

1. Stetemeht of Work

1.1.. The Contractor shall provide Rreventative and Primary Health Care, as well as
related Care Management and Enabling Services to individuals of all ages who
are considered-homeless iri Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area. The
Contractor shall-provide services to .individuals who are:

I.T.I. Uninsured.

.1,.-1,.2. Underjhsured.-

1.:1..3. Low-iricome, whjch js defined as having income that is less than 185%
of the, U.S. Department of Health arid Hurnan Services (USDHHS),
Poverty Guidelines.

T.1:4. Lacking housing, including ah individual whose primary residence
during the night is a -supervised public of private facility that provides
temporary Ijving accommodations, which may include, but is riot limited •
to, shelter.

I.T.5. In transitional housing.

1 .'1.6. Unable to 'maintain their housing situation.

■1:1:7. Forced to stay with a series of friends or extended family members."
1,1 i8. To be released frorri a prison or a hospital' and do not have a stable

housing situation to which they can^ return, especially if they were
considered to'be horneless prio.nto incarceration or hospitalization.

1.2: the Contractor shall, provide services Jn permanent office-based locations
and/or mobile or temporary delivery locations during flexible hours and use
appointment systems minimally when providing primary care and enabling
■services to homeless individuals and families.

1.3. Th.e Contractor shall continue to provide primary care and enable" services to
'individuals, for a riiinirtium'of three hundred and sixty-four (364) calendar days,
following the Individual's placement iri perma'nent housing.

1.4. The Contractor shall provide. Screening, Brief Intervention and Referrals to all.
individuals receiving care under this agreement.

1.5;, The Contractor ishall ensure primary care, services are-provided by a New
'Hampshire licensed Medical Doctor (MD), Doctor of Osteopathic Medicirie (Dp),
.Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (APRN) or Physician.Assistant (PA) to
eligible individuals in the service area.

1.6.-. The Contractor.shall .ensure primary care services include, but are not limited

RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA .Contractor Initials^
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to:

1.6.1. Reproductive health seryices.

1.6.2. Behavioral health services.

1-6.3. Preventive services, screenings and'health education in accordance
with established, documented state or "national guidelines.

1-.6;4. Pathology, radiology, surgical arid CLlA-certified laboratory seivices
either on-site or by referral.

»  '

•1-.6.-5. Assessment-of patient need as well as follow-up and referral, as
indicated for;

1..6.5,1. tobacco cessation, including referral to QuitWorkSr
r^H, www.QuitWorksNH.org.

1.6.5;2. Socialservices.

1.6.5:3. Chronic Disease-rnanagement, including disease-
specific referral and self-management education,
which rhay include but is not limited to referral to
Diabetes Self-Management Education (DSME) as
recommended by American Diabetes Association

■(ADA).
1-..6.5;4;. Nutrition, services, including Women, Infants and

Children (WIG) Food -and Nutrition Se'rvice, as
.appropriate;

t.6:5.5. Screening, Bjief Intervention and Referral to
Treatment (SBIRT) services, including but not,
limited to contact with the Regional Public Health
Network Continuum of Care Development.Initiative!

1.6:5.6. Referrals to health, home care, pral health and
behavioral health specialty providers vyho offer
sliding scale fees, when available.

1.7. the Contractor shall provide care management for individuals enrolled .in
prirhafy care services, which includes, but Is hot limited to:
T.7.1... Integrated and' coordinated services that ensure .patients receive,

necessary care; including behavioral health and oral' care, as needed
and wanted by patients.

1.7.2. Direct access to' a healthcare provider by telephone twenty-four (24)
hpurs per day; seven (7) days per week, .directly, by referral or
subcontract.

1.7.3. Care, 'facilitated by registries;, information techhblogy; ,and health

.RFA;2020-DPHS-05^PRIMA Opntractor Initials'
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information'exchange.

1:7.4. /An integrated model of primary care that includes, but is not limited to:

1.7..4.1. Behavioral health.

1.7.4.2. Oral health.

1.7.4.3. Use of navigators arid case mahagerneht.

1.7.4.4. .Co-location of services and syStem-leVel: integration
of care'.

1.8. The Contradtof shall provide and facilitate enabling services, which are non-
clinical services that support the delivery of basic primary care services, and
facilitate access to. comprehensive patient care as well as social services, such
as:

I .S.'I. -Case Management,

i .8.2. Benefit counseling.

1.8.3, Health insurance eligibility .arid enrollment assistance,

1.8.4. Health educatiori arid supportive cpunselirig.

i.8.5'. Interpretation .-and translation for individuals with Limited 'English
Proficiency or other .communication needs.

'1.8.6! Cutreacl;),.which may include, the use of comrnunity health workers.

"1.8.7. Transportation.

■'1.8.8. Education to patients and the commuhity regarding the availability and
appropriate use of health services.

1.9. The Contractor shaH attend, meetings and trainings facilitated -.by The
^Departnients Maternal and Child Health Section .(MCHS) programs that include,
but are not limited to:

1:9.1. MCHS Agency Director meetings.
T.9.2. MChiS Primary. Care Coordinators rineetings, wh'ch.'afe held tv/o (2).

times per year, which rhay require attendance by agency quality
improvement staff.

■1:9.3. -MCHS Agency Medical.Services Directors meetings.
1.10. the Contractor,shall subniit ''an annual. VVorkplan that inclLides. a detailed

description of the enabling services funded by the. resulting contract. This "shall
'be developed and subnnitted according to. the schedule arid instructions
provided by the'MCHS..the Contractor will, be hotified at least thirty (30) days
In a,dvance of any dhariges in the, subriiission schedule.

1.-11.. FoY purposes of :thjs agreement, -all references to days shall rfiean calendar
'RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA Contractorlnilia
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2. Coordihatlpn of Services

2.1. The Contractor .shall coordinate with other service providers, within the
community, whenever possible, including, but not lirnited to collaboration, with
interagency referrals and to deliver coordinated care.

2.2.. The Contractor shall participate in activities within the Public Health Region,.as
'appropriate, to enhance' the integration of community-based public health -
prevention and healthcare initiatives being implemented, including but not
iirfiited to:

2.2.1. Corfimunity heeds assessmerits.

2.2.2: Public health performance.assessme.nts.

2.23. Regional health impfovement,plans under development.

2.3. -The Contractor shall participate in and coordinate public health activities,'as
requested by,the Department, during any disease outbreak and/or emergency,
that affects the public's health.

'3. Staffing

rS-l. The,Contractor ..shall ensure all health and allied health,professions have the.
appropriate, current New Hampshire licenses, whether .directly employed,
contracted or subcontracted.

' 3.2. The .Contractor shall employ a medical services director wiih special'trainin'g and
experience in primary care who must participate in quality improvement activities,
and be available to other staff for consultation, as needed.

'3.3.. The'Coritractor sh'ali notify the MCHS, in'writing, of any newly hired administrator,
clinical'coordinator or any staff person essential to providing contracted services
and include a copy of the individual's resume, withiri thirty (30) days of hire.

,3.4. The Contractor shall notify the MCHS, in writing. When:

3.4.1,. Any critical position is vacant for more than thirty (30) days;

3.4.2. There is r\ot adequate staffing to perform all required services for any
period lasting more than thirty (30) consecutive days or.any'sixty (60)
noh-consecutive days.

4. Exhibits Incorporated

■4.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in corhpliance
'With the Standards. fgr 'Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health .Information
(privacy Rule) (45.CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, arid in accordance with, the attached
Exhibit Business Associate Agreement, which has been.executed by the'parties.

4.2, The Coritractor shall.manage all confidential data related to this Agreeraertt in
RFA-202^DPHS-05-PR|'mA ■ C9nlractor Initiall^^M
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accordance with the terms df-Exhibit K; DHHS Inforrriatlon'Secufity Requirements.

4.3, The Contractor shall comply, with-all Exhibits D through K, whjch are attached
hereto and incorporated by.reference herein.

5. Reporting Requirements

5.1. The Contractor shalh collect and report data on the MCHS. Prim'ary Care
Services for the. Homeless Performance Measures detailed in Exhibit B-l-,
Reporting Metrics.

5.2. The Contractpr^shall submit an updated budget narrative, within thirty (30) days
of any changes, ensuring the budget narrative includes, but is not limited to:

5.2.1. Staff roles and responsibilities, defining the Impact each role has on
■  contract services.

5;2y2. iStaff list that details Information that includes, but is not limited to:

5;2.'2.'1. The Full Time Equivalent/percentage allocated to
coritract services.

^5.2.2.2. The individual cost,, in U,S. ''p6ilars, of each
identified individual allocated to: contract services.-.

5.3. The Contractor shall submit a Sources of Revenue report at-any point when
■changes in revenue threaten the ability of .the agency to provide services, as
required in this.Scope of Services.

5.4. The Gontractorshall submit reports on the date,(s) listed, or, in years where the
'.date .listed falls oh a non-busines& day, on the Friday immediately prior to the
date listed.

,5.5. The Contactor shall complete and submit each report, as instructed by, the
Departrhent.

,5.6. The Contractor shall submit annual reports specific to homeless individuals in
islashua and the Greater .Nashua Area to. the Department, including but'not
iliifiited to:

5.6.1. .Uniforni Data Set Data tables specific to homeless individuals located
in Nashua and the Greater .Nashua 'Area that reflect program
performance for the, previous calendar year po later than March 31st.

■ 5,6.2. A sumniary of patient satisfaction survey results obtained during the
prior cpntract year no later than July 31 st.

'■5.6.3. Quality ImpfpvementJQj) VVorkplarismo later than July 31 st.
■,5:6.4. Enabling S.ervices\Wo.rkplans no later than July 31st.
5,6.5.. Ql Wprkplari revisions. :as appropriate, no later than September 1st.
5.6.6.' Enabling Sefvices Workp.lah revisions, as appropriate, no latei;;^thah

■RFA-2020-DRHS-05-PRIMA, Contractor initials
»  a , J i. s . ■

Lamp'rey Health Care. "liic. iPageSofll Dateate



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Primary Care for the Homeless in Nashua.and the Greater Nashua Area

EXHIBIT B

September 1st.

5,6.7: Corrective Action Plans refating.to Perfornnance Measure Outconie
■Reports, as needed, no later than September Ist.

5.7. The Contractor shall submit semi-annual reports to the Department, including
'but not limited to:
5.7.1. Rrirnary Care Services,Measure Data Trend Table (DTT) is due no

laterthan:

5.7.1.1. July 31, 2020 for the measurenient.period of July 1.;
2019 through June 30, 2020.

5.7.1.2. January 31, 2021, for the rneasufenient period of
January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020.

.5:7.1.3. July 31, 2021 for the measurement period of July 1„
2020 through June 30, 2021.

'5.8. The Contractor shall demonstrate the capacity and perforniance experience to
nrieet the Scope of Services outlined in this contract, which includes the,
requirements detailed in Exhibit B-1,'Reporting Metrics.

5.9, the Contractor shall demonstrate the capacity arid perfpnmarice experience to
meet'the Scope of Services outlined herein.,

6. On-S,ite Reviews

6,T The Contractpr shall permit s team or person authorized by the. Department to
periodically review the Contractor's:' ' ' ■
6.1-.1. Systems of governance.
6;1.2. Administration.

6.1.3.- Data collection arid submission.

•8.1.4. Clinical and financial management;

•6.-1.6. pelivery.oTeducatjpn services,

■6.1:6. Delivery of Primary Care Services.
6.2. The Contractor shall cooperate with the Depaftrrient to ensure information

needed for reviews in Section 7.1 is accessible and provided and includes, but
is not limited to:

-6.2.1. Client records,

6.2.2: D.ocumeritation of approved .'enabling services . and! quality
improvement projects, Including process and outcome evaluations.

"6.3. The Contractor "shall take cdrfectiye actions, as advised by the review"tearfi, if
services provided are not in compliance with the require'mentsof lhis scope of

RFA-2020-DRHS-05.;PRIMA Contractor InltialsC^W
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•services,

1. .Quaiitylmprovement

7.1. The Contractor shall develop, define, facilitate and Implement a minimum of
two (2) Quality Improvement (Ql) projects,'Which consist of systematic and
continuous 'actions.,that lead , to measurable improvements in health care
services and the health status of targeted patient groups. The Contractor shall:
ensure:

'7. "1.1. One (-1) Ql project focuses on the performance measure designated
by MCHS, which is Defined as Patient Safety: Falls Screening SFY
2020-2021. . . .

7.1.2. The other(sj Ql proj'ect(s) wlll'be chosen by the Contractor from Exhibit
B-1, Reporting. Metrics MCHS Primary Care for the Homeless
•Performance Measures according to the Contractor's previous
. performance outcomes needing improvement.

7.2: The Contractor shall utilize "Ql Science to develop and implement a'Q!
Workplan for each Ql project that includes:

.7:2.1. Specific goals and objectives for the project period; and

7.2.2. ; Evaluation methods used to demonstrate irriprovement in the quality,
efficiency, and effectiveness of'patierit care.

7.3. The Contractor -shall include baseline rneasurements for, each area of
impfovenient identified in the Ql projects, -to establish health care sen/ices arid
health status of targeted patient groups upon which to Improve.

7.4. The Contractor shall .Utilize 'activities in ■:QI projects that'enhance clinical -
workflow and jrhprove patient outcomes, which may include, but are not limited

■to:

7-4.1. EMR prompts/alerts.
7.4.2. .Prbtocpls/Guidelines.
7.4.3. Diagnostic support.

7.4.4. Patient registries.
7:4.5. Cbllaborative learning sessions

Q., Performance Measures

8.1;. "the Cdntfactof shall define Annual Improvement Objectives that ar'e
■ measurable, specific and align to the provision of prirriary care semces defined

within Exhibit B-1, Reporting Metrics.

,8.2. The Contractor "shall actively and regularly collaborate with the Department to
"eiihance^contract mariagement, improve results, apd adjust program delivery
and policy based oh s.uccessful outcorries. ' . \

'RFA:2p2d-DPHS-d5-P,RIMA .Contractor InltialsCliKJ
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8.3. The Contractor Inay be required to provide other key data, and.metrics to'the
Department, including ciient-leyel dernographic, performance, and service
data.

-8.4. Where applicable, .the Contractor shall collect and share .data with the
Department in a format specified, by the Department:

9. Additional Terms

9.1. Impacts Resultlnig from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

9.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court ̂ orders may have an impact on the Services
described herem, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under-this Agreement so as to achieve-
compliance therewith.

9.2. Culturally and Linguistically Appropriate Services (CLAS)

9.2.1. The Contractor.shall submit and comply with a detailed description of
the ianguage assistance-services they will provide to persons with
limited English proficiency and/pr hearing impairment to ensure
'meaningful access to, their programs and/or services within ten (.10)
■ days of the contract efrectiye date.

9.3. Credits and Cppyright Ownership

9.3.1. All documents, notices, .press releases, research reports and other
rhaterials prepared .during or resulting from the performance of the
services "of the Contract shall include the following statement, "The
• pr'eparation-of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a
Contract with the State ofNewHam'pshire, Department of Health and
Hurp.an Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
'Hampshire and/or such other funding sour'ces as were available or
.required, e,g., the United States Department of Health and Human
;SerVices."

9,.3.2. All materials produced or purchased -under the contract shall have-
prior approval .frorn' the Department before printing, production,
distribution or use.

.9,3";3. The Department .shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
priglnal,materials produced, including, but not limited to:

9.3.3. T., Brochures.

9.3.3.'2. Resource directories.
»  • •• ' r

9.3.3.3. Proto'cols or guidelines.

.9;3.3.'4. Posters.

9.3.3.5. Reports.

RFA-'2020-DPHS-05rPRIMA ContractoriniUals'
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. . . I .

9.'3.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
contract without prior Written approval from .the Department.

9.4. Operation of .Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

:9.4.1. In the operation of any facilities for providing services, the Contractor
shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of-federal, state,
county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public
Officer or officers pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or
duty upon the contractor with respect to the operation of the facility-or
the provision of the .services at such facility. If any governmental
license or permit shall be required for-the operation of the said facility
or the performance of the said, services, the Contractor will procure

■said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the tefms.and
conditions of each :such license or. permit. In connection with the
foregoing requirements, the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees
that, duririg the term of this Contract the facilities shall comply with all
rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the
Fire Marshal and the local fire protection agency, and shall be jn
conformance with local building and zoning codes, bylaws -and
regulations.

9.5.. Eiigibiiity Determinations
9.5.,1. The Contractor shall notify the Department,- in writing, .if^access to

'Primary Care or SBIRT Services.for.new-patients are limited or closed
'for more than thirty (30) consecutive days or any sixty (60) non-
,consecutive days.

9.5.2. The Contractor shall .assist individuals with completing a Medicaid or
'Expanded Medicaid and other health insurance applications >hen
income Calculations indicate possible Medicaid eligibility.

.9.5.3. The Contractor shall post a notice In a public and conspicuous
location that states rip'individual will be denied services due to ari
inability to,pay for services.

?,5.4, The-Contractorshall develop and implerhent-a-slidihg fee scale for
services in accordance with the Federal Poverty Guidelines. The.
Contractor shall:

9.5.4.1. Ensure the sliding fee scale is avaijable to the
•Departmeht upon request.

9.5.4.2. Update the sliding fee scale on an annual basis, when
new Federal Poverty Guidelines are released.

9.5.4.3. Provide updated sliding .fee scales toThe iDepartmeht
for review and approval prioj to implementation.

. .'RFA-2020-DPHS-05:PR[MA Contractor Initials
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'9'.5.5. If the Contractor is permitted to deterrhlne.the eligibility of individuals
such eligibility determination' shall '.be made in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines,
policies and procedures.

9.5.6. Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided, by the
Departrherit for that purpose and shall be rnade and remade at such
times as are preschtied by the Department.

:9.5.7. In addition to the, determination forms required by the Department, the
- ■ .. Contractor shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services

hereunder, which file shall -include all ^information necessary to
support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests-. The Contractor shall furnish the Department
with all forms and documentation regarding eligibility determinations'
that .the Department may request or require.

^9.5.8., The Cdntfactor understands that all applicants for services
hereunder, as well as individuals declared ineligible have a right to a
fair hearing regarding that determination. The Contractor hereby
■covenants and agrees that all applicants for sen/jces shall be
permitted to fill out an application form and that each applicant or re-
applicaht shall be informed of his'/her right to a fair hearing In
accordance \with Department .regulations.

10. Records

10.1. ■ The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are npt limited to:
10.1.1. Books, records, documents and'other electronic or physical 'data

evidencing and reflecting all costs and other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all income
received or collected by the Contractor.

1.0.1.i2. All records rnust be maintained 'in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, svhich sufficiently and properly reflect all
-such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the
Department, and to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books,
records, and original evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions
.and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories,
■valuations of in-kind .contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, .and
other.records .requested or required, by the Department.

.10!l.3. Statistical, enrollrtieht, attendance of visit records for each'recipient
of services, which records shall include all records of application ahd
■eligibili^ (including all forms required'to determine eligibility for each
such, reciplerit), records regarding the provision of services and all
invoices submitted toithe Departmen't !to obtain payment for such
services.

■RFA-2020-DPHS-65rPRIMA Contractor Initials.
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10.1.4, Medical records on each.patient/recipient of services.

10.2. During the ternh of this Contract and the-period .for retention hereunder, the
Department, the, United States Department of Health and Human-Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall .have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination,
excerpts- and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment-of
the price limitation hereunder. the Cohtractand all the obligations of the parties
hereunder (except such obligations as, by the terms-of the Contract are to be
performed- after the end of the term of this Contract and/or survive .the
termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon
revievy- of the Final Expenditure Report the .Department shall disallow any
expenses-claimed by the Cohtractor as costs hereunder the Department shall
retain the right, at its.discretiorii to deduct the amount of such expenses as are
disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

:'RFA-2020-DPHS-g5-PRIMA - Contractor tnitials

Lamprey'rtealth Gare. tnp. ' Page 11 of 11 Date', ̂ fe|Lo2.o



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Primary Care Services for the Homeless in Nashua and the
Greater Nashua Area

Exhibit B-1- Reporting Metrics

Exhibit B-1 Reporting Metrics Contrac

Page lot 4 Dale <s

1. Overview:

The Contractor shall submit data reports and deliverables specific to homeless
individuals located in the Nashua and Greater Nashua Area.

2. Definitions

2.1. Measurement Year - Measurement Year consists of 365 days and is defined
as either:

2.1.1. The calendar year, (January 1st through December 31®'); or

2.1.2. The state fiscal year (July 1®' through June 30"^). -

2.2. Medical Visit - Medical visit is defined as any office visit including all well-care
and acute-care visits.

2.3. HEDIS - Healthcare Effectiveness Data and Information Set

2.4. NQF - National Quality Forum

2.5. Title V - Federal Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant

2.6. UDS - Uniform Data System

2.7. NH MCHS - New Hampshire Maternal and Child, Health Section.

3. MCHS PRIMARY CARE FOR THE HOMELESS PERFORMANCE MEASURES

3.1. Preventive Health: Depression Screening

3.1.1. Percentage of patients ages twelve (12) and older screened for clinical
depression using an age appropriate standardized depression
screening tool and if positive, a fpllow-up plan is documented on the
date of the positive screen (NQF 0418, UDS).

3.1.1.1. Numerator: Patients twelve (12) years and older who are
screened for clinical depression using an age-appropriate
standardized' depression screening tool and if positive, a
follow-up plan documented.

3.1.1.2. Numerator Note: Numerator equals screened negative plus
screened positive who have documented follow-up plan.

3.1.1.3. Denominator: All patients twelve (12) years and older by the
end of the measurement year who had at least one (1)
medical visit during the measurement year.

3.1.1.4. Denominator Exception: Depression screenirig hot performed
due to medical contraindicated or patient refusal.

3.1.1.5. Definition of Follow-Up Plan: Proposed outline of treatrheht
to be conducted as a result of clinical depressionvscreen.
Such follow-up must include further evaluation if scrben is

RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA \
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5ft

positive and may include documentation of a future
.  appointment, education, additional evaluation such as suicide

risk assessment and/or referral to practitioner who is qualified
to diagnose and treat depression, and/or notification of
primary care provider.

3.2. Preventive Health: Obesity Screening

3.2.1. Percentage of patients aged 18 years and older with a calculated Body
Mass Index (BMI) in the past six months or during the current visit
documented in the medical record and if the most recent BMI is outside

of normal parameters, a follow-up plan is documented (NQF 0421,
UDS).

3.2.1.1. Normal parameters: Age 65 and older BMI > 23 and < 30

3.2.1.2. Age 18 through 64 BMI > 18.5 and < 25

3.2.1.3. Numerator: Patients with BMI calculated within the past six
months or during the current visit and a follow-up plan
documented if the BMI is outside of parameters (Normal BMI
+ abnormal BMI with documented plan).

3.2.1.4. Definition of Follow-Up. Plan: Proposed outline of follow-up
plan to be conducted as a result of BMI outside of normal
parameters. The follow-up plan can include documentation of
a future appointment, education, referral (such as registered
dietician, nutritionist, occupational therapist, primary care
physician, exercise physiologist, mental health provider;
surgeon, etc.), prescription or administration of dietary
supplements, exercise counseling, nutrition counseling, etc.

3.2.1.5. Denominator: All patients aged 18 years and older who had
at least one (1) medical yisit during the measurement year.

3.3. Preventive Health: Tobacco Screening

3.3.1. Percent of patients aged 18 years and older who were screened for
tobacco use at least once during the measurement year or prior year
and who received tobacco cessation counseling intervention and/or
pharmacotherapy if identified as a tobacco user (UDS).

3.3.1.1

RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA

Numerator: number of patients in the denominator for whom
documentation demonstrates that patients were queried
about their tobacco use one or more times during their most
recent visit OR within twenty-four (24) months of the most
recent visit and received tobacco cessation counseling
intervention and/or pharmacotherapy if identified as a tobacco
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user.

3.3.1.2. Numerator Note: Numerator equals queried non-smokers
plus queried smokers with documented counseling
intervention and/or pharmacotherapy.

3.3.1.3. Denominator: All patients aged 18 years and older during the
measurement year, with at least one (1) medical visit during
the measurement year, and with at least two (2) medical visits
ever.

3.3.1.4. Definitions:

'3.3.1.4.1. Tobacco Use: Includes any type of tobacco.

3.3.1.4.2. Cessation Counseling Intervention: Includes
counseling or pharmacotherapy.

3.4. At Risk Population: Hypertension

3.4.1. Percentage of patients aged 18 through 85 years of age who had a
diagnosis of hypertension and whose blood pressure was adequately
controlled (<140/90mmHG) during the measurement year (NQF 0018).

3.4.1.1. Numerator: Number of patients from the denominator with
blood pressure measurement less than 140/90 mm HG at the
time of their last measurement.

3.4.1.2. Denorninator: Number, of patients age 18 through -85 with
diagnosed hypertension (must have been diagnosed- with

,  hypertension six (6) or more months before the,measurement
date) who had at least one (1) medical visit during the
measurement year. (Excludes pregnant women and patients
with End Stage Renal Disease.)

3.5. Patient Safety: Falls Screening

3.5.1; Percent of patients aged 65 years and older who were screened for fall
risk at least once within 12 months (NH MCHS)..

3.5.1.1. Numerator: Patients who were'screened for fall risk at least
once within the measurement year.

3.5.1.2. Denominator: All patients aged 65 years and older seen by a
health care provider within the measurement year. .

RFA-2620-DPHS-05-PRIMA
Exhibit,B-1 Reporting Metrics Contractc
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Primary Care Services for the Homeless In Nashua and the
Greater Nashua Area

Exhibit B-1- Reporting Metrics

yv

3.6.SBIRT

3.6.1. SBIRT - Percent of patients aged 18 years and older who were
screened for substance use, using a formal valid screening tool, during
any medical visit AND if positive, received a brief intervention or referral
to services (NH MCHS).

3.6.1.1. Nurfierator: Number of patients in the denominator who were
screened for substance use, using a formal valid screening
tool, during any medical visit and if positive, who received a
brief intervention and/or referral to services.

3.6.1.2. Numerator Note: Numerator equals screened negative plus
screened positive who have documented 'brief intervention
and/or referral to services.

3.6.1.3. Denominator: All patients aged 18 years and older during the
measurement year, with at least one (1) medical visit during
the measurement year, and with at least two (2) medical visits
ever.

3.6.1.4. Definitions:

3.6.1.4.1. Substance Use: Includes any type of alcohol or
drug.

,3.6.1.4.2. Brief Intervention: Includes guidance or
counseling.

3.6.1.4.3. Referral to Services: Includes any
recommendation of direct referral for substance
abuse services.

RFA-2020-DPHS-05-PRIMA .
Exhibit B-1 Reporting Metrics Contractor
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New Hampshire DepartmW of Health and Human'Services
Primary Care for the Homeless in Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area

EXHIBIT C

Pavrrient Terms

1. This Agreement Is funded by:

1.1. 13.04%, ilS Dept. of Health, and Human Services. Health Resources-
■ and Services Administration. Maternal and Child Health Services (Block
Grant), as av\/arded.on March 30, 2020 by the US Dept. of Health and.
Human .Services, .Health Resources and Services Administration,

Maternal and Child Health Services, CFDA #93.994, FAIN#
B04MC33853."

1.2. 86.96% General funds.

2. For the purposes of this Agreement:

2.1, The Department has identified the Contractor as a Subrecipient i in
accordance with 2 CFR '20b.0. et seq.-

2;2;., The Department has identified this Contract as 'NON-R&D, in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.87.

3. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfiliment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line item, as specified in Exhibits C-1, Budget through Exhibit C-
2, Budget.

4. The.Contractor shall submit an invoice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
fifteenth (15th) working day of the -fpllowing month, which identifies- and
requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month.

. The Contractor shall ensure the invoice is completed, dated and returned to the
Department in order to initiate .payment.

5. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices rha'y t:)e assigned an electronic signatufe and'
emailed to bPHScontractbillinq@dhhs.nh.Qov. or invoices may be rhailed.to:

Financial Manager
Department of Health and Hurhaii.Services

■129 Pleasant Street
^CoricordiNH 03301

'6. The. State shall make payment to the'Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt
of-each 'invoicOi subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if.
sufficient funds'are available; subject'to Paragraph 4 of the General Provisions
Form Number'P-37 of this.Agreement.

7." The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after,the
contract completion date specified in Form Pr37, General Provisions Block 1,7
Completion pate.

Lamprey.Health Care. Inc.- ^hibh C Contractor Initials

RFA-202P-DPHS-P5-PRIMA' Page. 10^3 P.ate_^
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New Hampshire Defiartment of Health and Hurrian Services
Primary-Care for the Homeless in Nashua iahd the-Greater^Nashua Area

EXHIBiTC

8. The .Contractor must provide, the services in Exhibit B, Scope of-Services, in
compliance with funding requirements.

■9. The Contractor agrees that funding under this Agreement may be withheld, in
whole or in part in the event of noh-cornpliance with the terms and'conditions
of Exhibit B, .Scope^ of .Services.

10". Notwithstanding anything'to-the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that
funding.Underjhis agreement may be vyithheld, in whole,or in part, in the event

■ of hon-compliance'with any Federal or State law, rule or regulation applicable
to'the services provided, or if the said seryices or products have not been
satisfactorily completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
agreement.

i t. Notwithstanding Paragraph 18 of the .General Provisions Form :R-37, changes
limited to adjusting' amounts within-" the ,pnce limitation and , adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal .Years and" bu'dget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made. hy wTitteh agreement of both parties, without
bbtaihing approval of'the Governor .and Executive Council, if nee.de.d and
justified,

■12. Audits

12.1. The Contractor is'required to subrhit an annual audit to the Depaftrnent
if any of the following conditions exist:,

, 12.i.i. Condition A - The. Gdntfactor expended $750,000 or more in
.  federal funds received as a'subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part

200, during the'mpst recently completed fiscal year.
12.1.2. Condition ^ - The Contractor is subject to audit .pursuant to the

'■ requirements of NH RSA 7:28,. Jllrb, pertaining to charitable
.drganizatibns receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

12-d ;,3: 'Condition C - The Cpritractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEQ) regulations to
submit an annual flnanciai .audit.

12.2. ^lf Cohditidh A exists, theContfactpr shall subrriit.an annual single audit
perfdfrned by an independent Certified Public Accouritant (CPA) to the
Department within 120 days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal
year, conducted in accordance with the requirements pf 2 CFR Part
200, Subpart F of the !Un)form_ Administrative Requirements, Co.st
Principles, aiid AuditRequirements for Federal awards. ,

.12.3. If Condition B or .Cohdrtipn C exists, the Contractor shall .submit an
annual financial audit pertdrmed by ao independent CPA within 120
days after the- close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

Larfipf^y Health'Care, Inc. Exhibit C Contractor Initial!

RFA-2020-D!=rtS-p5-RRlMA , Page 2 of 3 Date ,
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Primary Care for the Homeless In Nashua and the Greater Nashua Area

EXHIBIT C

12.4. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state orfederal audit exceptions
-arid', shall return to the Department all payments made under.the
Contract to"..which exception has been taken, or which have^ been
disallowed;becaLise of such an exception.

. Lamprey Health Care. Inc. ' Exhibit C • Contractor Initials

l?FA:2020-DPHS-05-PRlMA. -Page.SofS Date.
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Primary Care for the Homeless in
Nashua the Greater Nashua Area

C-1 Budget

Contractor name Lamprey hteatth Care

Budget Regueet for Primary Care for the Homeless • Nashua

Budget Period: SPY 2020

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Liheltem ; ' --- -1 •
Total progrism .Cost-'' ", .'.."'.CohtractoriShare/Match" I:- .'Funded by.DHHS.contract share ' ' ̂

Direct.-.,•-*-■.Indirect)' -".;Total:" ~ 'Direct'^ r.;L-lndlfect" ' " "Total r ^ •:Dlrect?*'~~r. IhdlrBct)' "•"r^rTotal'^"^*-'1. Total Salary/Wages $  2.240.48 s 3  2.240.48 3 3 2.240.48 32. EmolDvee Benefits S  383.12 $ 3  383.12 3 3 383.12 3  383.12

4. Eouioment: $ $
3
3 - 3 J

Repair and Maintenance $ s
3
3

■ 3

Purchase/Depreciation S  12.500.00 $ 3  12.500.00 3 2.500.00 3  2.500.00 3 10.000.00 3  10 000 005. SuDOties: $ $ 3 3
Educatiortal S  1.500.00 s 3  1.500.00 3 300.00 3  300.00 $ 1.200.00 3  1 200 00Lab $ $ 3 3
Pharmecv S  3.000.00 $ 3  3.000.00 3 1.551.27 3  1.551.27 3 1.448.73
Medical S  3.000.00 s 3  3.000.00 3 1.142.33 3  1.142.33 3 1.857.67 3  1 857 67Office $ 3 3 s 3

6. Travel S  300.00 $ 3  300.00 3 300.00 3  300.00 3
7. Occupancy s $ 3 S 3
8. Current Expenses % S 3 J 3

Teieohooe $ S 3 $ 3
Postaoe s S 3 $" 3 .

Dues and Subscriotions S  500.00 $ 3  500.00 s 3 500.00 3  500 00Audit and Legal s 3 3 $ 3
Insurance s 3 3 s 3
Board Expenses 3 3 s 3

9. Software s 3 3 J 3
10. Martcetino/Communications $ 3 3 J 3
11. Staff Education and Training $ 3 3 $
12; Sutxx)ntracts/Aareements $ 3 3 $ 3
13. Other (specific details mandatory): s 3 3 J 3
HR/IT Support $ 3 3 % 3
Admin/Finance Allocation $ 3 3 J 3 3Ctlnicai Support Allocation (BilItr>g/H(M/QI} $ 3 3 % 3 . 3 3

TOTAL $  23,423.60 3 3  23.423.60 3 5.793.60 3  . 3  5.793.60 3 17.630.00 $ 3  17.630.00

lamprey Health Care
RFP-2020.DPHS-054>RIMA
ExhUt C-«1
Page 1 of 1

Contractor IrUtiacDaio.^l^ioK>



Primary Cara for the Home less in

Nashua the Greater Nashua Area
C-2 Budget

Contractor name Lamprey Health Care

Budget Regueet tor Primary Care for the Homeless • Nashua

Budget Period: SPY 21

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Urie tteni<

1. Total Salary/Waoes

2. Employee Benefits

3. Consultants

4. Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Maintenance

Pufchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:

Edixational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Office

6. Travel

Total PfOfli^m.Coat

iDliect Indirect! Total

49,402.49

0,348.71

4.200.00

2.200.00

3,000.00

3,000.00

300.00

49.402.49

8.348.71

4.200.00

2.200.00

3,000.00
3,000.00

300.00

Contractof.Share / Match,

Direct:

3,000.00

300.00

430.20

300.00

■ Indlre^ri: .„..T6taK

3.000.00

300.00

430.20

300.00

■Funded by.DHHS.contract share ,
Direct C Indlre^'" -Total
49,402.49
8,348.71

1.200.00

2,200.00

2,700.00
2,569.80

49,402.49
8,348.71

1.200.00

2.200.00

2,700.00
2,569.80

7. Occupancy
8. Current Expenses

Telephone
Postage
Dues and Subscriptions
Audit and Legal
Insurance
Board Expenses

9. Software
10. MarlcetifXi/Communicatfons
11. Staff Education and Training
12. SubcontrBcts/AQfeements
13. Other Interpretation Services:
MR/IT Support
Admin/Finance Allocation

1,800.00

500.00

1,800.00

1.800.00

500.00

1.800.00

1,800.00

500.00

1,800.00

i:800.00

500.00

1,800.00

QinicaJ Support Allocation (Billir>o/HIM/QI)
TOTAL 74,551.20 74^51.20 4,030.20 4,030.20 70,521^)0 70,521.00

Lamprey Health Care
RFP-2020^PHS-05-PRIMA

.Exhibit C-9-2
Page 1 of 1

Contractor Inttiats.

Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
•  ■ ' Exhibit b

. CERTIFICATIbN REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions;agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5'1,51-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C! 70.1 et seq.)..and ifurther agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identifted in Sections
inrand 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE i-FOR GRANTEES OTHER than JNbiVlbUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF.HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
-US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION ̂ contractors

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This.certification is required.by the regulations implementing Sections 51'51-5160 of the Drug-Free ^
•Workplace Act of'l988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Titje V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31.
1989' regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (P^ges
•21681-21691), and require .certification by grantees (andby inference, subrgrantees and sub-" .
'contractors), prior to award,.that they will maintain a drug-free workplace.-Section 3dl7.630(c).o'f tfie.
■ regulation provides that,a,grantee"(and;by.infer6nce, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certifjcalion to the Department in "each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the fedefaj fiscal yeaV covered by the certification. The certificate set out belpw is a
material representatlpn^pf fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be'groundsTo.r suspension of payments, suspension Or ^
termination of grants,'6r government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to;

Commissioner .

'NH Department o'f.Health and Human ..Sen/ices
129:Pleasant Street,
''Concord, NH 03301.-6505

1. The grantee certifiesthat it will or vvlll continue to provide a .drug-free workplace by:. _
i;i .Publishing a-statement notjfyihg employees"that the unlawful manufacture, distHbutipn;

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that wllj betaken against employees forwiolatloh'p^such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about •
1.2.x. The dangers o'f drug abuse in the workplace;
1;2.2. • The grantee's,policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
,1-2:3. Any available drug counseling,fehabilitation, and employee assistance:programs; arid '
1-.2.4. The penalties .that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations,

occurririg in the workplace;
1.3.- Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); ^
1.4. .Notifying the employee,in the statement required by paragraph'(a) that, as a condition of

employment under the.granl, the employee will
'T.4.1I. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in-writing of his or her conviction:"f6r, a. violation.of a criminal drug,

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after.such
•corivictioh: " , . » ,

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten.calendar days after re'ceivirig hotice under' ,
■subpar'agraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such cpnviCtiori.
Employers of convicted ernployees must provide notice, including position title, to .every.grant

• officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency:

Exhibit D - Certification regarding Drug Free- Vendor Jnitiais
.Workplace "Regylrements

.:cufDHHS/iib7i3 > "Page 1 6f 2 D.ate-,



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall ipciude the
identification nunnberfs) of each-affected grant;

1:6. Taking one of the following actjonS, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up'to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or '

1.6.2. Requiring su'ch employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or.
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal. State, or local he.aith,
jaw enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through •
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The graritee may insert iri.the space provided below the site{s) for the perforrhance of work done in'
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Perfprmahce (street address, city, county,.state, zip code) (list ea.ch ideation)

Check □ if there are workplaces ori file that are not'identified here.

Vendor Name: C*/2-t2'

Date - , , .Name: e)as>oa>4
Title: 'CCo

E)^ib[t D.- Certificalibn regarding.Drug Free 'Vendor Initials
(3$\

Workplace Requirements , . ■
.cu/dhhs/116713 • •' Page 2 of 2 Date to\o



New. Hampshire'bepahnie^^ and Human Services
Exhibit E

, CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General" Provisions agrees to comply with the proVisibhs of
• Section '319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide.Guidance for New Restriction's on .Lobbying. and
• 31 U.S.C. 135"2, and further agrees'to have the Contractor's representative, as ibentified in-Sectibns 1.11
•and.1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

Us DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS .
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE -CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate'applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title.lV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
-Sdciaf Services Block Grant Program Under Title XX
"Medicaid Program under Title XIX
■•"Cornmunity Services.Block Grant under Title VI
"Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies", to the- best of his or her knowledge and belief! that: ^
'1. No Federal appropriated funds h'ave'be'en paid or will be paid by or ph-behalf.of the undersigned, to

any person for Influencing or a'ttempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee'of .Congress,.or an employee, of a Member of Congress jn
connection with the'awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or •

'modification oTany Federal.contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grante'e-or sub-contractpr).

;2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have.been paid .or will be paid to any person for
•infl.uencing or atternpting to influence .an officer onemployee of any agency, a Member of'Congress,
an officer or employee .of Congress, or.ari employee of a Member of Congress in conriection with this
Federal contract, grant, .{pan, of cooperative agfeement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractorj, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to-
-Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions,.attached and identified as Standard Exhibit EtI.)

3.'. The undersigned shall require"that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, ,

'loans,-and cooperative agreements) and that all subTrecipienls'shall certify ahd disclose accordingly.

ThiSjCertifiCationis a material representation of'fact uppii .which reliance was placed v/heh this transaction,
.was made or entered into. Submission of this'certificatipn is a" prerequisite for making or entering into this
•transaction Imposed by Section 1352, Title 31.; U.S. Code! Any person who falls to file the required
■certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 510,000 and not more than $10.0,000 for
each such" failure.

Vendor Name: -HOMH GO ̂

laio'

.Date ■ Name:-
• Title: CCD

.»Exhibit.E ^ Certification Regarding Lobbying Vendor.lhitials.,

cd/OHHS/n'oTia' Page i of 1 Date-J^^bl2fl?-Q



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
•Exhibit F '

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

.AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

the Vendor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President,"Executive Order '12549 and 45 GFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
■representative, as identified.in Sectioris 1.11 and 1.12 of the General,Provisions execute the following
-Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By Signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is,providing the

certification set out below.'

/2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial i
of participation in this.covered transaction., If necessary, the prospective participaht shall submit'an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification.. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)'
determination whether to enter into this'transagtion. However, failure of the prospective, prirfiaiv
;panicipant to furnish a certification Or an'explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in'
this transaction.

• 3. The certification in this"clause'Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined.'to enter into this transaction. If It is later de^rmined that the':prospectiye
■primary participant knowingly rendered an'erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS niay termlnate-this transaction for cause or default.

4, The prospective primary partlcipant.shalj provide immediate' written notice to the DHHS agency to
'whom this proposal (contract) is submitted If at any time' the prospective primary participant learns
that its.certificatiop was erro'nepus when subrhitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed

•^circumstances;

•5. The terms "covered transaction." "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible." "lov/er tier covered
transaction," "participant)" "person." "primary'covered transaction," "principal." "proposaj." and
"voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections.of the rules irriplementing Executive Order*12549:'45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

'6: The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
frorn participation Jn this covered'transaction, unless authorized.'by DHHS.

'7.. The prospective.primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -•
iLower Tier Covered Transaclions.'''provjded by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

' 8. A participant'in a covered-transaction may-rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
'lower tier'covefed transaction that.il is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or.ihvoluhtarlly excluded
fro'ni the covered transaction, "'unless it knows that the cerlihcation is erroneous. A'participant may
decide the method and frequehcy'^by which it determines the eligibility of Its principals. :Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocuremeni.List (of excluded parties),.

'9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
'in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and ■ ^

^ E>dilblt F - Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension Vendor jnlUals
• And OthefiRes^n^billty Matters

xu/OHi-rs/noTta' * Page 1 of 2 ' Date,



-New Hampshire Department of Health and'Human Services
'  Exhibit F

•information of a participant is hot required to exceed that which is nofmally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary .cpuree of business dealings.

iO., Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tiercqvered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred* ineligible, orvoluntarily excluded from participation in this trahsactiph, in
addition to other remedies available to the-Federal government. DHHS may tenriinate this transaction'
for cause or default.

; PRIMaI^Y COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11.'The prospective prirhary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its

principals: . . . - ,
11.1. are not presently"debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, of

voluntafily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have nOt within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been cbiivicted of of had

a.civil judgment fehdefed against them for commission of fraud or a crirhinal offense in
connection vyithobtaining, atternpting to.obtain, or performing a public (Federal,.State,or local)
transaction or a contract under a publjc transaction; violation of Federal or State arititfiist.
•statutes or comrhission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification ordestruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11;'3.. are not presently indicted fofOtherwise crimiiially or civilly charged by a goverhmerital entity
(Federal, State or local) vyith cdmmissiofi of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph.(l)(b)
•"Of this certificatipri; and

11.,4. have hot vyithin a" three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one of more public
transacd'ohs (Federal, State or local) termiriated for cause or default..

12., Where the prospective prirnary participant is Unable to certify to any of the statements in this-
certification, such prospeptive"participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract)'.

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS

13. Sy signing and submitting this lo.wertier proposal (contract), the prospective loyyer tief participant, as
.defined in 45 CFR Part 76,'certifies to the best of its knowledge and bejief that it arid its principals:,
13.1,.. are not pre'sently'debarred, suspended, proposed'for debarment.,declaredjneligible,pr..

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency..
13.2. where the prospective lovyer tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attacH-an explariation'to this proposal (contract).

14., The prospective lower tier'participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled"Certification Regarding Debarment. Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions." without modificatibn in all Jpwer tier covered
transactions and in all splicitatidns for lower tier coyered transactions,

" Vendor Narhe: +i^T>K

Iblb
Dite ^ . Name: ^ J OM*re'

Title;/. CUCti

•Exhibit F Certification Regarding pebanrient.'Suspension Vendor initia.ls
And Other Responsibiii^ Matters

•cu/OHHSJiioh3 'Page 2 of 2- Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
^  . . . . Exhibit G

CERTIFICAtlON OF COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Vendor identifiedjri Sectioh 1.3 of the Geherarprovisiohs agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified In Sections ,1.11.and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following ■
certification': ' ' -

Vendor will comply. and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nohdiscrirhinatibn requirements, which may include:

. ,the-Omnibus CrimeGontrot and.'Safe Streets Act of 1968 {42-U.S.C. Section■3789d) which prohibits •
Tedpients of federal funding'under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or ipr
.the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color,'religion..nMibnal origin, and sex. The Act
•requires certain'reclpients to produce an EquarEmployment Opportunity Plan;
- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C..Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of.the. Safe Streets.Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
.statute are.prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices or in the delivery of services or
■benefits, on thebasis of race, color,.rejigion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Erhplpyment OpportunityPlanVequirements;
-the.Civil Rights Act Of 1964 (42 U.S;C. Section 2'O.OOd. which prohibits recipients of federal fihandal
assistance from discriminating on the basjs of race, color, or national origin in any programor activity);'
- the Rqhabilitaticn Act of, 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits recipients .of Federal financlaj"

.assistance from discrimlhatipg on the.basisof disability, in regard'toOmployment and the delivery of
;services:or benefits.,in any program or activi'ty:
■-.the.Amerlcans with pisabilities.Act on99b (42-U;S'.C. Sections 12131-34),-which prohibits
discriniihation and ensures equal opportunity for.persbris with disabilities.in employment; State and local

'govem.iTient services, publid accommodations, commercial facilities,.and transportatidn;
- the Education Amendments bri972 (20 U.S;d.Sectlo.ns 1681,1683. 1685-86). which'prohibits-

' .discrimination oh the basisWsex inifedefally assisfed-educatipn programs;
- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42.U.S.C. Sectiohs-61Q6-07), .which prohibits discrimination on the
basis pf age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It dOes-hpt Include
'erhployment discrimination; .
- 28 C:F.R. pt. 31 {U.G. Department of 'Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs): 28 C.F.R.,pt.-42'.
(U.S Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures);'Executive,Ordef No. V3279 (equalprotection of the laws ,for faith-based and community
:6rgahlMti6ns); Executive,Order No. ISS'SO. which prbvide'fundamental pfiriciples arid policy-makirig.
.criteria for partnerships With faith-based larid neighborhood organizations:

-.28 C.F;R..pt..38 (U.S. Departrherit of Justice Regulations.- Equal Treatment for FaithrBase'd ,
Orgarilzations): arid Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C.'^712 and The National Defense.Authorizatibn
Act'(NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013,(Pub. L. lf2-239. enacted January 2.:2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement ,of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, .which protects employees agalrist

• reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is-a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the^
'.agency-awards the'grant. False ;certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of parents, suspension'or termiriation of grants, or gpyernment wide suspension or

.debairn'erit.

Exhibit G
*  . " " - . . . Vendorlnitial.s

" CwiJfleatlbn of Con^ianc® wiih>#qulfim«nu ptrulnlnflio F»d«ral Non'discfimlniDon. Equal •rr«ain*n|_ of F^ih-Ba^ OrganlzaUona..andWhlsUablowar^taetlona <
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New Hampshire department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

ar

, In the'event a Federal or State court.or Federal or State administrative agency makes a findirig of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color,, religion, national origin, or sex
.against a recipient'of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or dlyision'within the Departrnent of Health and Human Services, and
.to the Department of Health arid Humari Services Office of,the Ombudsman.

The Vendor identified iri Section 1;3,of the General Provisions agrees by.sfgnature of the Contractor's
representative as identified Iri Sections i.li and 1.12 of.the'General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

'1.. By sigriing arid submitting this proposal (contract) the Vendor agrees to corfiply with the provisions
Indicated above.

Vendpr Name:

c|42£>Ui
Date Name;

,  CSD

ExhlbifG
:Vend6rinltials

.Cwlificatlon or Compllanca roqulremonts pviainino to NonOltcrtniinalton. £qu^ TrastirMnt of Failh-GaMd Orgar^alloni'
amfWhisSaUowerprotacUona '

■6/27/14
•Rdv.'.io/2i/i4' Page 2 of 2 Date 4 toU>
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law,'10,3-227. Part.C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children.Act of 1.994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
'contracted for by an entjty and used rputihely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, ̂education..
■-or-Iibrary services to children under the age of.18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either"
directly or thrd.ugh State or local governments, by Federal grant; contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
lavy does not.apply to children's services provided, in private,residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities .used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to Corhply with the provisions of the law rnay result in the irnposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/of the'irnpositipn of.an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

the Vendor identified in Section 13 of the Geriefai Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 111 and li2of the General, Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and.submitting this contract, the .Vendor agrees to rhake reasonable efforts to cprhply with
all applicable proVisions.of Public'Layy 103-227,' Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Vendpr-Name; -

ICiU)

Date Name: ViHtfe
Title: <jSX>

jExhIblt.HLCertificalion Regarding. ■ Vendor Initials
•en'vironmental.tobac

cu/OHHS/no7i3 Page 1 ,of 1
ehvironmentalTobacco Smoke .DateJIlbl^O



New, Hampshire Depa^ment of Health and Human Services

Exhibit 1

'HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreernent agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and. Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
:with the Standards for Privacy arid Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
.CFR-Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the,Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
.receive, use br have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
'Entity" shall rrieah the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human. Services.

!(1) Definitions.

:a. ".'Breach" shall'have the .same meaning as the term "Breach".in section ■164.402 of Title 45,
.Code of federal Regulation^

b. "3usiriess Associate" has the meaning given such terni infection 160.103 of Title 45, Code
Of FederaJ Regulations. -

c. "Covered "Ehtitv" hasJho meaning given such term in section 160.i03.pf Title.'45,
Code'pf Federal Regulations;

d. '"Designated Record Set"shall have the same meaning asithe term"designated record set"
■in 45 CFR Section 164:501.

e. "Data Aqgreqatioh" shall have the sam'e meanihg.as the.ter.m "^data aggfegation'',ih 45-'CFR: .
■SectionM64.501. ^

■f. "Health Care 6pefati6ns":shall have.the same meahlng as the term '!heaith'cafe'operatiohs"
.In 45 CFR 'Section 1^.501,.^"

.g. "HITECH Act" means the Health information Technology for Ecoriorriic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXlil, Subtitle D.iPart 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009: ' '

' h. "HIPAA" means, the Health" Insurance Pprtability and Acco'untabitity Act of 1.996, Public Law ■
104-191, ahd the Standards for Privacy arid Security of Individuallyldentifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "indivlduar'iri45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person vyho qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45

■CFR Section"164.501(g).^

;j'.. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy Of Iridividually Identifiable Health
'Information at 45 CFR Parts 160.and 164, promulgated under HIPAA" by the United States
Department pf Health and Human Services.

•k^ "Protected Health Information" "shall have the same meaning as the term "projected health
information" in "45 .CFR Section 160,103, limited to the ihfprmatipn created or receiVed by
^Business Associate from or oh behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initials
..Health Insurance Pcrtabilily Act ■

' Business Associate Agreement ^ t U »
!' Page'Tore ' b'ate'^lM™:®'



:New. HampsH|re Department of Health and Human Services

iExHlblti

I. "Required bv Law" shall'haye:the same nieanirig as the term."required by lay in 45 CFR
Section 164.103;

I'm- -Secret^""shall mean the'Secretary of the Department'of.Health and',Human 'Services 'or;
his/her de'signee.

n. "SecuritviRule" shail mean the Security Standards for the Protectidh of Eiectrpnic Protected
'  Health Information af45 CFR Part'l"64, Sub'parl^C. ahd amendrpents thereto.

■0, "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health. inforrhatiomthat Is hot,
secured by a technbibgy.standard thatfenders protected'heafth informatidn unusable,
unreadable, or Indecipherable to unauthorized Individuals and is developed or endorsed'b"y
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the Amerjcah National Stahdards
Institute.,

:p. 'Other Definitions - All terms hot otherwise defined her.eiri shall'have the meariing
■' .established under 45 G.p^R. Parts 160,162'andi64,".aS amended fromilme tb time, and the

HITECH ■
^ct.

(2) Busiriess Associate Use an^ Disclosure of Protected Health Information.'
<a.- Business Associatb shall not'use, disclose, maintaip or transrhit.Pfotected Health.

Information (PHI) except as reasonably nebessary'tp. provide the services outlined under
'  Exhibit A of the Agreement;.- Further, Business Assbpiate. including but not lirnited to all

its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall hot use,'disclose, maintain or transrnit
.PHI in.any'manner'that would constitute a-violatibn of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b'. Business Associaternayuse;prdisclpse*PHl:l . . ..
•I. Pbr'the proper management and administration of the Business. Associate;
M: As'required by law.,.■pursuant to .the termsiset forth In paragraph d. below; of.
III. For.data-aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

c. 'To'the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreemenfto disdose PHI.,to a
third' party, Business Assopiate-must obtain, prior to making any such dlsclpsure, (I)
■reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI vyili be held confidentially and
.used of further,disclosed only asirequired by law or for the purpose for whiph It was'
disclosed to the, third party; and (ii) an agreement frorn such'third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance, with the H|PAA' Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules'Of any Breaches of the cpnfidentiallty of the. PHI, to the extent;it has-pbtained
knowledge of such breach.

'd: The Budriess Associate shall not, unless such'disclosure.is jeasonably hecessary tb
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreemerit, disclose any PHHn response to.a
request for disclosure,on the" basis'-that it is re.quifed'b'y law, without first notifying ^
.Cpvefed Entity so that Covered Eritity has ah oppprtuhlty to object to the disclosure and
to se.ek appfop'fiate relief. If Covered Entity 'objePts. to; such disclosure, the Business

•^2014 Exhibit ! .Cbhlractofinitialii
"  Health Insurance, Portability Act

,  eBusiness Associate Agreement t ki A
'Pase'2.of6
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Associate Shall refrain from .disclosing'the'PHI until'Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. -If the Govered Entity hotlfies"the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed'to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures gr'security
safeguards of PHI-pursuant to.the Privacy and Security Rule,-the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and Shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additipnarrestrictions and shall abide, by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obllaatlons and ActKritles-of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate-becomes aWare of any use orOisciosure of protected
health information hot providediforvby the Agreement including breachesiof unsecured
protected health information and/or any Security incident that may have, an impacl.on the

.'protected health Information of the Govered Entity.

.b. The Business Associate shall immediately, peffdrrh a risk assessment when it becomes
;awafe of any of the above situations. The risk',assessment shall Include,'but not/be
ilirriited to:

0 The nature and .extent of the protected health information irivpived, Including ;the
types of identifiers and the likelihood-of re-identificatioh;"

0 The unauthorized person used the.protected health Information pr.to whppt the
disclosure" was made; . .

o Whether the .protected health information was actually acquired or viewed'
o The exterit to vyhich the.fisk to.the protected'health infortriatipn has b^h •

•mitigated.. .

The Business Associate shall cprriplete the risk'-'assessment within 48 hours of the
'breach and imrnediately rep.6rt.,the findings of the risk assessment iri writing tp the
Covered Entity.

.c.. The,Business Associate shall comply with .all sections of the privacy, Security, .and:
Bieach.Notification, Rule^

'd. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, bool<s
and .records relating to the., use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Busihess Associate on behalf of Cov.ered Entity.to the'Secretary for
purposes.of determining Govered.'Ehtity's compliance With HIPAA and the Privacyand
vS.ecufity Ru|e.

■e.- ^ Business Associate shall .require all of its business associates that receiye. use pr have.-
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same

. restrictions and conditions on the use and .disclosure of PH I contained herein, including
.the duty to return or destroy the PHl as pfovided under Section ,3 (I). The Covered Entity,
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Cpntractor's business, associate
'agreerhents^With Gohtractor's intended business-associates, who wiji be receiving >?HI

3/2014 Exhibit I -Contractor Initial
'Health Insurance Poriability Act".'rteaiin insurance ronaoiiiry . ii .
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pursuanttp thts.Agi;eement, with rights of eriforcement and indemnification from such
.business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the.standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
'protected health information.

,f." Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Ehti^,
Business Associate shall make available duVing normal business hours at its offices-all
records, books, agreements,, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to deterrriihe
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

.g. • Within ten (10) business days'of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in. a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual.in order to.meet the-
•requirements under 45 CFR.Section 164.524.

h. 'Within ten (10) business days of r^eceiving a vyfitten request from Covered Entity for ah
amendment of PHI or a record about an, individual contained in a Desighated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall.make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
lObligations under 45 CFR.Section 164.526;

i. Business-Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI arid infdrrriatloh. related to
•such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity .to respond to a request byan
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. ^ ■

j. .Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for,a
•request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make availalile
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity rh.ay require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accpunting of disclosures with fesp.ept to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
'Section -164.528;.

k; In the event any indiyidual requests access to, anhendmerl't,of, or accounting of PHI
•directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall wUhin two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate'HIPAA.and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead./espond to the individual's request as required by such law'and riotify
.Covered. Entity'of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
■Business-Associate shall return or destroy, as'specified by Coyered Entity, all PHI ..
'received froni, or .created or received by the Business Associate in connection with;the
Agreement, and shall not retain any.copieS pr back-up tapes of such. PHI. If return or
destruction'is riot feasible, or'the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise-agreed to'in
•the Agreement; Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections 'of the
Agreement, to such PHi and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to thos

;purp9ses that rriake the.feturn or destruction infeasible.-for so long as Business
3/2014 ' Exhibit i 'Contractor Initials^
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Associate'maintains such PHl!. If Goyered'Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
.Business Associate destroy any or all.PHI, the Business Associate shall certify. to
Covered Entity that thePHl has been destroyed:

(4)' Obligations of Covered Eritit'v

a.. Covered Entity shall notify Business Assbciate pf any changes of limitation(s) in its
Notice of pfivacy Practices provided'to'ihdividuals in accordance with 45. GFR.Sectibn
1'64.52drto the:extent that such change or limitation may'affect'Business Asspclate's

'Use or disclosure of PHI.

lb;. ^Covered Entity shall promptly,notify Business Associate of any changes in,<6f,fevdGa.ti.oh
of permission provided.to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be.used of
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pufsuaht .to 45 CFR-Section
164.506 of 45 CFR Section-164.508.

■ c. 'Covered entityTshali promptly iriotify Business Associate of any-restfictions on the use or
.disclosure of PHI "that Covered Entity has agreed tp In accordance with 45 QFR 164.522,
t6 the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's'Use of disclosure of
PHI.

i(5)! :termihatlon for Cause \.

".in additlbh to.Paragraph 10 of the standard teffhs and cohdltions'(P-37) of this.'
Agreement the Covered Entity may imfhediately terrhihate the Agreement upon Covered

.Entity's knowledge of a..breach: by' Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreementset forth herein as Exhibit.!. The.Covefed Entity may.either immediately
terminate thd Agreement or provide an.opportunity fof Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within .a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity .

■ determines that,neither termination nor cure is feasible, Coyered Entity shajl report the
■vipjationjp the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All 'terms used, but not otherwise,d"efined:hereip,i-
•shajl have the^same nieahing as those terms in .the. Privacy and Security Rule','amended
from time td^tirne. A referehce'in'the Agreement, as amended to include'this Exhibit,1. to.
a Section in the.Privacy and Security Rule means the Section' as in effect or as-
arhended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and B.usiness Associate agree tp take such" action as Is.
necessary to amend the 'Agreement, from time to timp as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes, in,the requirements of HIRAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable fedefal and state law.

c} .bata'Qwnershlp. 'The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the'PH! provided, by or created on behalf of,Covered Entity.

d: Interpretation. The parties agree that any arfibiguity in the Agreefnent shallybe'fesolved
4o permit Covered'Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security' Rule;:

'3/2014 Exhibit I Contractor Initiate^
.  i Health Insurance Portability Act
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Seareoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or drcumstance is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit Tare declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit 1 regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37). shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Sta Name of ttie Contractor

r ...

Signature of Authorizeci Repn

Name of Authorized Represefi

thorizeci Repre

Represefn

sentative SignalurVotAuthorized Representative

&>SsCKt>{ uiMirer
tative Name of Authorized Representative

csro
itie of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

Date Date

3/2014 Exhibit I
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
~  ACT (FFATAi COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants.^ual to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1,2010, to,report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFAJA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting, Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for.any

. subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1; Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts./ CFOA program number for giants
5. Program source
6. Award title, descriptive of the. puq^se of the funding actipn
7. Location of the entity'
8. .Principle place of performance . .
'9. Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS,#)
10; Total compensation and flames of ̂ e top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80%.of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and thos'e
revenues are greater than S25M annually and

10.2. Compensation-IrifortTiation is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data.by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the avi/ard or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Generel Provisiorls.agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Acco.unta.bjlity'and Tiensparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and ,2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Suba.ward and Executive Compensation Information), arid further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1,11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute .the following .Certification:
The below named. Contractof.agrees to provide needed infprmabpn as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Huriian Services and to'comply y4th all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act

Contractor Name: 0A£

iA
Date Name:

Title: ■ (2rD

Exhibjt'J -Certification.Regarding the Federal Funding <Cbnlract'br Initl.ajs
,  \/^puntability And transparency Act (FFATA) Cbfripjiance. CTzjn o "
cu/DHHS/iib7i3' ' - 'Page1of2'' ' Date
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FORM A.

As the Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, "I certify that the responses to the
.below listed questions are true.and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: _ Q'AOVS^HC>\ -

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did yoUr business or organization
receive (1) 80 percenter rnore of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts,-subcontracts...
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) 525,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
[cooperative agreernents?

NO •YES-

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2-above Is'YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have,access'to information about the cornpensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed.under section i3(a) or 15(d) of the Securities;
Exchange Act of 1934(15 U.S.G.78m(a), 78o(d)) or .section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of'
•1986?

■ NO YES

If the 'answer to,#3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO,;please answer the following;

4; 'the names and compensation of the five rnost highly'compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

'Name:

Name;

'.Name:

^ame':

Name:

.Amount:

.Amount:

Amount:

Arnpurit"

..Amount:

CUVDHHS/Iions

ExHibk J Coilification Regarding the Federal Funding
I Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance

Page 2 of 2 '

Contractor Initia

bate tO\.0



New Hampshire biBpaiiment of Health iand Human Services
E)(hibit.K

• DHHS Information Security Requirements

•A. .Definitions-

Thefpllpwihg'terms may be reflecte'd.and have.the described meaning in this document:-

'T: '"Breach" rneans the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
• unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring .to
situations where'persons-other than authorized users -and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information," whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, " Breach" shall have the same rriea.nihg as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of'Title 45, Code of Federal .Regulations.

'Z ■ '"Computer Security 'Incident" shall have the-same 'meaning "Computer ̂Security
Incidenf^ in section hA/o (2),of NIST Publication 800r61. Computer Security Inciderit
'Handtihg ,Guide, Na'tlprial Institute Of Standards .and Technology, U.S. ,Departnnent
of-Cqrhmerce; ' ,

,3. "Cohfideritiai ihforrriatioh" 6r""Cdnfidehtial Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one .party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance^benefits and personal information including -without llmitatiotii Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records. Protected Health Information- and
Personally identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also.includes any and all infofrhation owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from of on behalf of the Department of. Health and
Human Services (b.HHS) or' accessed iin the .course of performing contracted
'S.ervices - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is,governed" by"
state or federal law .or regulation. This informatiori includes, but,Is hot limited'to
Protected Health. Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI),- Personal Financial
Informatipn (RFI), Federal fax information (FTI). Social Security Nurnbers ,(SSN),
Payment Card industry .(PCI). and or other .sensitive and cohfidential information.

4, '"End User" means any ,person or entity'(e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, jsubcdhtractof, other downstream luser, etc.) that receives
DHHS data of derivative data in accordance with the terms of this 'Contract.

:;5.. "HIPAA" means the Health ln"sUfance ,Pdrtability:ahd Accpuhtability Act of. 1,99.6 and the-
regulations promulgated thereunder.

,6. "Incidehf means.an" abt that potentially viplates.an explicit or Impiied security policy,
whichiihelude's attempts (either fajled.of succe'ssful) to gain unauthorized access to'a
system or its-data, unwanted disruption or 'deriial of sen/ice', the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing pr'Stofa'ge of data;" and changes .to system hardware;,
firmware, .or software chafacteristics, without itbe owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Inciderits include the.ldss pf data through theft"or device misplacement; loss'
-or misplacement of-hardcopy documents, and, oiisfoLiting of physical or electronic

V5,.Lasl update 10/09/18 'E^ibltX Contractor Iriitlais
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New Hampshire Departmeht of Health and Human Services
.Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

y

.  .mail, all-of'.which' may have, .the potential'to,put the data at risk of unauthorized
'access.-use, disclosure, modiftcatlon.or destruction.;

•1. "Open Wireless Network" means any network or .segment of .a network that is.
•not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology .or delegate as ;a protected 'network (designed, tested, and

'approved, by means of the State, to transrnit) will be considered an open
network and'not adequately secure for the transmission of, unencrypted. PI. PFI,
PH] of confidential DHHS dab.

8. "Personal Inforrhation" (or •Pi") means infdrrnatipn which .can be used to distinguish
or trace an iridividuars identity, such as their name, social security number, personai
infbrniatlpn as defined in New. Harhpshire RSA,359-C:19, biometric records, etC;,
aione, or when combined with >other personai of identifying information which is'linked
Or linkable to a specific Individual, such <as date and place of birjhy mother's nnaiden
name,'etc.

9.. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information .at.45.C.F.R.Parts; 1.60 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the .United
States Department of ;Health and Human Services. ,

10. "Protected Health Information" (pr "PHI") has the same meaning as provided ih'.the
definition of''Protected Health .Iriforrri.ation" In .the HIPAA Privacy.Rule'at 45 'C.F.R. §
160.103,. ■ . ' ■

11., "Security Rule" shail mean the Security-Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Prbtected "Health Information at .45 C.F.R. Part 164. Subpart C, and .amendnients
thereto. ^ .

•12: -Unsecured Protected Health Information''-.means Protected Health Information that is
hot securAl'.by a technology' -stahdard that" renders Protected Heplth informatlbn
unusable, .unreadable^ or .indecipherable to unauthorized individual's and is
developed or endprsed'by.e standards developing organization that .is accredited by
the Arhericah.National Standards Institute,

RESPONSIBILITIESpF DHHS AND:THE CONTRACTOR

■A.- Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential, Information..

1. TheXontractpf must not use, disclose, rnalntain or trarisitiit Confidential'Inforrhation
-exPept ais reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further. Contractor,
including butrhbt lifnlted to--all.'its.^directors, officers, empioyees and. agents, must-nbt-
uSe; disclose, fnaintain or tfahsmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a yiolation
of-the Pri\?acy and Security. Rule;

'  ,2. Jhe. Contractor must nob disclose ariy Confidentiaj Informatlbn in response Ip ,a

■VS.'Last update 10/09/18' Exhibii K Contractorlnitials
DHHS Information .
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New Hampshire Departs and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHSihfprmation.Security Requirements

request for .disclosure on the basis that it is, required by law, in response-to a -
subpoena, fete., without first riotifying .DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity :tq
.consent or object to the disciosure.

:3. If DHHS". notifies the Cohtractpr that DHHS has agreed to be bound, by. additional'
restriction's over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
jDu'rsuant to the Privacy and Security .Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such ,
additional restrictions'and must .not disclose PHI in violation ;of such additional
restrictidhs and must abide by any additional security safeguards.;

4: the Contractor agrees .that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed: to an End '
User must only be-used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

:5:- The Coritractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may npt be used for
'  any other purposes that are not indicated in this Coiitract.

6. The e'ontfactor agrees to grant access to the .data -to the authorized fepreseritatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirrh compjiance with the terms oTthis ..
Contract.

;il. METHODS OF SECUREtRANSMISSlON OF data

1.. Applicatibh, .Ehcfyptipn, ;if End User is .transhiitting DHHS data ■containing
Cdnfidential Data, between appiicatibns/the Gohtractpr attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable .Iri cyber security and that said
applicatiori's,encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

.2. 'Computer Disks arid Portable Storage Devices. Epd User rnay not use computer disks '
• or pprtable .stpr^age deVices.,.such as :a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
•data.

3. ' Encrypted.-.Email. End Use.rmay only ehciploy erriail to transmit Confidential Data .If
email is e'ncrVpted- arid being sent to and being-received by ernall addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4., .Encrypted Web Site. If .End User is employing the VVeb „to tfansmiV Corifidential
Data, .the. secure socket 'layers -(SSL) must be used and the wOb .site ifiust be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a .Web. site.

■5. ;F,ile Hosting,Services, also.known as File Sharing Sites. End User may riot use tile
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transniit
Confidential Data.

6. .Ground Mail Service.'End User may only transmit Gonfidehtiai Data via .cert/f/ed ground
mail within'theiconlirientai .U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

J. La'ptops and PDA.-. If End .User; is ernploying portable devices to transmit-.
■ Confidtehtiai.Data said'devlces.rnust be ericrypted and passwordrprotected:

;8: Dp>eri'\^ireiess'Netwbrfe User'.hiay ho1 transmit Cdhfidential Data yja. an Topeh-

-- vs."tail updMe 10/09^8 Exhibit k ..Cohtraclorthjiiais^
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New Hampshire Departmeht of Health and Human Services
■Exhibit k

.pHHS Jriformatiori Security Requirements

wireless .network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting yia .an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Conimuhication. l^,E^d User is employing remote communication to'
access or trahsrfiit Gbnfidential. Data, a virtual private network'(VPN) must be
^installed on the End User's nnobiie.,devlce(s) or laptop from which-iriformatlon will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Traihsfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an -SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End, User will

■structure, the Folder and' access, privileges to prevent inappropriate. •disclosure of.
informatioh. SFTP fpfders and sub-folders used'for transrhitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour ayto-deletion.cycie (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted.every 24.
hours).

11. 'Windless Devices; If End User is-transmitting Confidential Data via wireless, devices,.all .
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.-

m. retention and disposition of identifiable records

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the-duratioa of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
"derivative in whatever form it may exist, unlesSj otherwise, required by law or permitted
■under this Contract. To this end. the parties must:

A. Retention

'■'1. The Coritractor agrees it will not store, transfer or. process , data collected in
'  connection with the sen/ices rendered-under this Contract" outside of the United^

StatesyThis physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud'cdmputing, cloud service or-'clbud .storage •.capabilities, and includes backup
data'and Disaster Recovery locatigns;

'2. The Contractor iagrees to ehsure prop'er. security rribhitbrlrig capabilities are in
place to: d.etect potential security eyerits that can Impact State of NH systems
and/or bppartm'ent.confidehtiarinformatign for contractor provided systems.'

'3. The Contractor agrees-to' provide security 'awareness and education for its. Epcl
Users'lh support of-protecting Department confidential information.

4.. The-.Cbhtractbr-agrees to .'retain all 'electforiic and hard copies of Cohfidentlal Data
Ip a secure location and identified in sectipn IV, A.2

'5, -The Cohtractor' agre'es •Cohfidentlal' Data stored in a Cloud, must be Jri a-
EedRAMP/Hl'TEGH .compllaht solutioh. and comply with all applicable stat'utes an'd
regulations regarding/the privacy and security. All servers, and'devices must haye
'currentiy-supported and hardened operatirig isyste'ms, the latest anti-viral; anti-
hackep antirsparh, anti-spyWare, and anti^malware utilities; the enyironrn.ent, as a

WS'Tastupdate-10/69/18,' .. . .'ExhibitK .. ConlraclonlriUia
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

:DHHS inforrriation Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperatiori with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

,B'r ;Dispositioii

. 1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon" request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of-New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery .operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing.State of
New Hampshire data shall be,rendered' unrecoverable via a secure wipe,program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards .for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise, physically destroying the media (for .example,
degaussing) as described-in-NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of-Standards and- Technolpgy, U. S.
Department-of Corrimerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory':and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor priorto destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty. .(30) .days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding. ' s

3. Unless otherwise -spe.cifted, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
.  Contract, Contractor agrees to corhpletely destroy ,ail electronic Confidential Data

by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wjping.

. ly. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract-, and any
deriyative data or files, as follows:

1. -The Contractor, will rnaihtatn proper security controls to protect iDepartmeht-
confidential information collected, processed, managed," and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

'2. The. Contractor, will rriaintain policies and procedures 'to protect Department
confidential Information throughout the information lifecycle. where applicable, (from
.creation,'.transformation, .use, stdrage and secure destructipn) regardless of the
.media used to store .the data (i.e,, tape; disk,.paper, etc.).

■.VS.iast update-10/09/18= lExhibilK - 'CpntractorlnlUal
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Nevy Hampshire bepartmeht of Health arid Hurhah Services
Exhibit,.K;

DHHS Iriformation Security Requirements

3. The Contractor'Will! maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to'
cohtractor'systerris'that collect; transmit, or store Department confidential inforhnatip'n;
where applicable.

• 4. The Contractor •will ensure, proper security-monitoring •capabi.iities'are in place, tq:
detect potential .security events that can impact State of NH rsystems and/oh
' Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.;

5. The Contractor will provide regular 'security awareness and education'fpr its End
Users'iri support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. 'If.'the Gpntractpr.wjil be sut)-.cpntractiiig" any core functions of the'engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will rriaihtaih a
program -of an linterhal process *or processes that defines specific security'
expectations,; and monitoring corhpliance to'security/equirements that at a minim'urn
match .thbse-for the Contractor, including'breach, notification requirements:

7. The Contractor will work with-the Department to sign and comply with all-"applicable
State , of .New Hampshire and 'Department system , access and authdrizatioh policies,
and procedures, systems access forms, .and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining'.;and maintaining access jo. any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and' signed by the Contractor and; any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.^

'8. If-thd Departrhent determines the Contractor Is a Business Associate pursuant to 45-
CFR 160.103", the Contractor wijl .execute a HiPAA Busjness Associate Agreement.
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
-agreement.

' 9. the Contractor will 'work with' the Department .at its request to complete a .System
Management'Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department: and
Contractor .to-monitor for any change.s in risks, threats, and-vulrierabilities that may
occur over the life .of .the Contractor engagement. The .survey will be completed
. annually, or-an alternate tinie frame at.the Departments, discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department, may request the survey be completed w.hen the
rSGope of the engagement between the p'epartment and the Contractor-changes.,

.lO.'The Contractor will hot store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State Of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or-qutside the bqundaries qf the United States unless

.  'prior express " written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office,
iaadership member within the Department.-

11. Data Security Breach LiabHiiy.,iln the event of any,-security :breach Contractor ̂shall:
make efforts to ihvestigate'the.-causes ;6f the breach, prornptly take, measures to_

. preyentrtuture,'breach and nniniimize any damage pr loss resujting frorn the breach.
The Staie shall recover fro.m'the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from'
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DHHS. Information Security Requirements

the breach, including but not limited to: credit'.rhohitoring services, mailing costs and
• costs associated with website and telephone call center-services necessary due ,tO;
the breach.-

12. Contractor must, cdmply'with all. applicable statutes and regulations, regarding' the'
privacy and security-of Confidential: Information, and must in all other respects
-maintain, the .privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to. .provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a)i DHHS
iPrivacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45'

■ C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and.as applicable under State law. ^

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality»of the Confidential Data and to-
prevent unauthorized use or . access to it. The safeguards .must provide a level and
scope of'security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hanripshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/7www.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the pepartmeht .of Information Technology .policies, guidelines, standards, arid
prpcurement'lnformation relating to vendors.' ,

14. Coritractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify, the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of.any security breachjmmediately, at the email-addresses
provided in Section Vl:. This",includes a confidential information breach, computer
security''incident, of suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New.
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network;

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHH'S Data to'
perform thelf official duties In connection with purposes Identified in thls Contract.

16. The Contractor must "ensure.that all End Users:

'■ a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A_. abovej
irnplemented to protect Confidential Information that is .furnished',by DHHS
.under this Contract'from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure..

,b: safeguard this information at all times.
-.c; ensurelhat laptops and other electronic deyices/media containing P"HI, Plyipr

PFI are encrypted and password-protected.
■d. serid .emails ;Containing 'G6hfidehtial .[nforrnatioh-only jf encrypted and being

sent to and being received\by erri^l addresses :o"f fpersons-authorized-to-
receive such-information.

.yS.Xasfupdate 10/09/18 ' Exhibil'K Contractor Initials
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DHHS liifprrriation Security Reqiiirernents

■e. limit disclosure of the Cohfidehtial Information to the extent permitted by law..
f. Confidential Information received under this' Contract and individually

identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored In an area that is.
physically and technolpgically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hpurs as well as non-duty hours {e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometriC'identifiers, etc.).

■g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information; and in all cases,^
such data must-be encrypted at-'all times when in transit) at rest, or wheri
stpred on portable media as required'in section IV above.

h. in all other 'instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used , and
disclosed, using appropriate safeguards, as determined .by a risk-based
assessment of the^circurnstances inyojved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will,keep their credential in'forrnation secure.
This applies to.credentials.used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application. '

Contractor is responsible for oversight and-compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves "the right :to conduct onsite .inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract,, including the privacy and security requirements provided jn. herein, HIPAA,.

, and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data-
is disposed of h accordance with this Contract.

v. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
'Security Incidents'and Breaches iimmediately, .'at the email addresses provided in
Section VI; .

The Contractor hiust further h'aodle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with "the agency's documented Incident Handling arid Breach Notification
procedures-'and, in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§'431.300- 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations .arid procedures,
•Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:
1. Identify Iricidents; .
2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;
3. Report sVspected or-confirrhed Incidents as required in this. Exhibit of Pr37;
4. Identify ahd cqnvene a core response group to determine theifisk level of Incidents

and determine risktbased responses to lncidents;'.arid

'.VsVl'ssI update 10/d9yi6 Exhibit K • \ebntractorlnHials
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach' notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear-costs associated with the Breach notice as well as'any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be-addressed rand reported, a^
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 3.59-C:20.

Vl. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer: .

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.hh.goy

B. DHHS Security Officer:^

. bHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

-• VS.'Lsst update.lb/09/l8 "Exhibit K

., DHHS Information
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

[. William'M. Gardner, Scc-ctary of State of the Stale of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that LAMPREY HEALTH CARE.
INC. Is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to trunsaci bLisincss in Ne^v Hampshire on August 16, 1971.1 further
certify that all fees and documents retiuircd by the Secretary of State's ofTicc have been received and is in good standing as far as
this office is concerned. ,

Busirtcss ID: 66382

Certificate Number: 0004496055

y
l£m

rm

5^

(i>5

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 1 Ith day of April A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stole



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Thomas Christopher Drew, hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corpofation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Lamprey Health Care, Inc.
(Corporalion/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on March 25, 2020, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Gregory A. White, Chief Executive Officer (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duly authorized on behalf of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the State
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all documents,
agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which may In his/her
judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. 1 hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of. the contract termination to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for thirty (30)
days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the Stale of New
Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed.above currently occupy the position(s)
indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the
authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such
limitations are expressly, stated herein.

Dated; May 12. 2020
Signature of Elected Officef
Name: Thomas Christopher Drew
Title: Secretary

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of , 20.

By
(Name of Elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of the Agency)

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires:

Rev. 09/23/19
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CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
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THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S], AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT; If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the poilcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsemont. A statement on
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INDICATEO. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT SMTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MXY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXaUSIONS AND CONDmONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
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j

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIOHS1 LOCATIONS 1 VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Addlilontl R«m»Ni» SchiduM, in»y bt «tueh*d « men »p*e« 1* rtqutnd)

Evidence of General Liability and Workers Compensation coverage.

■ NH DHH8

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRiBED POLICtES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIve

ACORD25 (2016/03) <91988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights rdssrved.

Tho ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Lamprey
Health Care
Where Excellence and Caring go Hand in Hand

Our Mission
The mission of Lamprey Health Care is to provide high quality primary medical care and health related
services, with an emphasis on prevention and lifestyle management, to all individuals regardless of
ability to pay,

» Wc seek to be a leader in providing access to medical and health services that improve the health status
of the individuals and families in the communities we serve.

»  Our mission is to remove barriers that prevent access to care; we strive to eliminate such barriers as
language, cultural stereotyping, finances and/or lack of transportation.

»  Lamprey Health Care's commitment to the community extends to providing and/or coordinating access
to a full range of comprehensive services.

*  Lamprey Health Care is committed to achieving the highest level of patient satisfaction through a personal
and caring approach and exceeding standards of excellence in quality and service.

Our Vision
Wc will be the outstanding primary care choice for our patients, our communities and our service area,,
and the standard by which others are judged.
We will continue as pacesetter in the use of new knowledge for lifestyle improvement, quality of life.
We will be a center of excellence in service, quality and teaching.

We will be part of an integrated system of care to erisure access to medical care for all individuals and
families in our communities.

We will be an innovator to foster development of the best primary care practices, adoption of the tools of
technology and teaching. . . - j
We will establish partnerships, linkages, networks and referrals with other organizations to provide
access to a full range of services to meet our communities' needs.

Our Values
We exist to serve the needs of our patients.
We value a positive caring approach in delivering patient services.
We are committed to improving the health and total well-being of our communities.
We are committed to being proactive in identifying and meeting our communities' health care needs.
We provide a supportive environment for the professional and personal growth, and healthy lifestyles
of our employees. ,, r l
Wc provide an atmosphere of learning and growth for both patients and employees as well as for those
seeking training in primary care.

We succeed by utilizing a team approach that values a positive, constructive commitment to Lamprey
Health Care's mission.

Affirmed 12/18/2019
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BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
Lamprey Health Care. Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Lamprey Health Care,-Inc.
and Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc., which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30. 2019 and 2018. and the related consolidated statements of operations, functional
expenses, changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Sfafements
\

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles: this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal coritrol relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures-that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's Internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

hlar-'O •'Mow HdiriKhlJc . Massachusclts • Cohncdjcut • V/cjl Vi/flfrkio'v Aflicna
bcirydunn.com



Board of Directors

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.
Page 2

Opfnlon

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Lamprey Health Care. Inc. and Friends of Lamprey Health Care. Inc.
as of September 30, 2019 and 2018, and the results of their operations, changes in their net assets
and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.

Change in Accounting Principles

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, in 2019 Lamprey Health Care, Inc. and Friends of
Lamprey Health Care. Inc. adopted new accounting guidance. Financial Accounting Standards Board
Accounting Standards Updates No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities (Topic 958) and No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230). Our opinion is not modified with
respect to these matters.

Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying consolidating balance sheets as of September 30. 2019
and 2018. and the related consolidating statements of operations and changes in net assets for the
years then ended, are presented for purposes~of additional analysis rather than to presdnt the financial
position and changes in net assets of the individual entities, and are not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records'used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audits of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other,
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

i-

Portland, Maine
January 17, 2020



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30. 2019 and 2018

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable
Other receivables '
Inventory
Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities
Fair value of interest rate swap

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2019 2019

$ 1,422.407 $ 1,341.015

1,237,130 1,330.670
452,711 228,972

236,798 172,839
81,484 72.219
78.405 139.568

3.508,935 3,265,283

19,101 22,590

2,943,714 3.205.350

13,612 -

7.608.678 7.584.923

$14,093,840 $14098.146

$  641,818 $  438,830
961,024 919.690

85,418 117,696

106.190 102.014

1,794,450 1,578,230-

2,031,076 2,134,337
. 13.404

3.825.526 3.725.971

9,732,208 10,061,029

536.106 311.146

10.26B.314 10.372.175

$14.093.840 $14.098.146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements off Operations

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue $ 9,143,768 $ 9,426,185
Provision for bad debts (398,644) —(354i460)

Net patient service revenue 8,745,224 9,071.725

Grants, contracts and contributions 6,104,270 5,538,925
Other operating revenue 1,637,578 769,240
Net assets released from restrictions for operations 76.197 118,447

Total operating revenue 16.662.269 15.498,337

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies '
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation.
Interest

Total operating expenses

Deficiency of revenue over expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

10,584,167 9,941,188

1,993,787 1,688,571
646,774 715,862

1,731,988 1,569.327
580,711 . 594,355

697,670 537,414

145,114 143,338

461,062 459,716

107.856 96.431

16.949.018 15.746.202

(386,749) (247,865)

26,916 365

31.012 16.651

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions $ (328,821) $ (230,84^

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.
Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other

Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Allocated program support
Allocated occupancy costs

Total

Healthcare

Services

8.599.722 $
1,531.182
614.628
892.684 •

4,020

283,801 .

886.269
714.331 .

$ 13.526.637 $.

AHEC/PHN Transoortation

418,765
76,015
12,839

225,590
477

157,524

34.319

$ 127,054
23.346

47

407

23,-155
120

8.922
27.509

4.531

925.549 $. 215.091

Total Administration

Healthcare and Support
TotalServices Sen/ices

$  9,145.561 $  1,438,596 $ 10,584,157

1.630.543 363,244 1,993,787

627,514 19,260 646.774

1,118,681 613.307 1,731,988

27.652 553,059 580,711

441,445 256,125 697,570

8.922 136,192 145,114

27,509 433,553 461,062

107,855 107,855

8861269 (886,269) -

753.181 /753.181) -

S. 14.667.277 S  2.281.741 $ 16.949.018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
-5-



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expenses

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Healthcare

total
Healthcare

Administration

and Support

Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other

Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Allocated program support
Allocated occupancy costs

Total

Services AHEC/PHN Transoortation Services Services Total

8,000,572 $  411,320 $ 120,008 $ 8,531,900 $ 1.409.288 $ 9,941,188

1,315,582 70,805 20,049 .  1,406.436 282,135 1,688,571

684,828 7,051 40 691,919 23,943 715,862

815,843 139,400 - 955,243 614,084 1,569,327

4,402 480 ■  20,945 25,827 568,528 594.355

253,564 87,005 39 340.608 196,806 537.414
_ 8,696 8,696 134,642 143,338

• _ 28,093 28.093 431,623 459,716
- 96,431 96,431

825,266 •  - - 825,266 (825,266) .  -

930.169 36.593 4.831 971.593 (971.593) -

;  12.830.226 $  752.854 $ 202.701 $ 13.785.581 $ 1.960.621 $ 15.746.202

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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lamprey health care, inc. and friends of lamprey health care. inc.
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net As^sets

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions
Deficiency of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

Decrease in net assets without donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets.released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital acquisition

Increase (decrease) In net assets with donor restrictions

Change In net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

2m: 2018

;  (386,749) $ (247.865)

26,916 365

31.012 16.651

jdo

(230.8491

205,027 71,205

126,142 16.651

(76.197) •(118.447)
(31.012) (16.651)

224.960 (47.242)

(103,861) (278,091)

10.372.175 10 650.266

£10.268.314 £10.372.175

notes are an Integral part of these consolidated financial statements.The accompanying

-1'



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash flows from, operating activities
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided by operating activities
Provision for bad debts
Depreciation
Equity in earnings of limited liability company
Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Grants for capital acquisition
(Increase) decrease in the following assets:

Patient accounts receivable

Grants receivable

Other receivable

Inventory
Other current assets

Increase (decrease) in the following liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Capital acquisitions

Cash flows from financing activities ^
Grants for capital acquisition
Principal payments on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of year

Breakdown of cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash,
end of year
Cash and cash equivalents
Assets limited as to use

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid for interest

Capital expenditures included in accounts payable

2019 2018

$  (103,861) $ (278.091)

398,544 354.460

461,062 459,716

3,489 (2,292)
(26,916) (365)

(126,142) (16,651)

(305,004) (614.015)
(223,739) 247.179

(63,959) (87,482)
(9,265) (8.640)
61,163 .  21,378

25,215 42.545

41,334 39.213

(32.278) 28.656

99.643 185.611

(306.944) (173.745)

126,142 16.651
(99.085) (104.489)

27.057 (87.838)

(180,244) (75.972)

4.546.365 4.622.337

5 4.366.121 S 4.546.365

$ 1,422,407 $ 1,341.015
2.943.714 3.205,350

$ 4.366.121 $ 4.546.365

107.856 $ 96.431

177.773 $.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization

Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (LHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized In the State of New
Hampshire. LHC is a Federally Qualified Health Center (FOHC) whose primary purpose is to
provide high quality family health, medical and behavioral health services to residents of southern
New Hampshire without regard to the patient's ability to pay for these services.

Subsidiary

Friends of Lamprey Health Care, Inc. (FLHC) is a not-for-profit corporation organized in the State
of New Hampshire. FLHC's primary purpose is to support LHC. FLHC is also the owner of the
property occupied by LHC's administrative and program offices in Newmarket. New Hampshire.
LHC is the sole member of FLHC.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements Include the accounts of LHC and its subsidiary. FLHC
(collectively, the Organization). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated In consolidation.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board Issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958).
which makes targeted changes to the not-for-profit financial reporting model. The ASU marks the
completion of the first phase of a larger project aimed at improving not-for-profit financial reporting.
Under the ASU. net asset reporting is streamlined and clarified. The existing three category
classification of net assets was replaced with a simplified model that combines temporarily
restricted and permanently restricted into a single category called "net assets with donor
restrictions" The guidance on accounting for the lapsing of restrictions on gifts to acquire property
and equipment has also been simplified and clarified. New disclosures highlight restrictions on the
use of resources that make otherwise liquid assets unavailable for meeting near-term financial
requirements. The ASU also imposes several new requirements related to reporting expenses
which resulted in the expansion of the consolidated financial statements to include statements of
functional expenses. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of these statements
accordingly The ASU has been applied retrospectively to 2018. The adoption had no effect on the
Organization's total net assets, results of operations, changes in net assets or cash flows for the
year ended September 30. 2019. The adoption did result in a reclassificatlon of net assets
previously reported as net assets with donor restrictions to net assets without donor restrictions.
This related to gifts received and used to acquire property and equipment and the restrictions on
these gifts were previously released over the useful life of the acquired assets. Previously reported
net assets with donor restrictions of $109,370 and $115,620 at September 30, 2018 and 2017.
respectively, have been reclassified as net assets without donor restrictions.

-9-



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 201B

In November 2016, FASB Issued ASU No. 2016-18, Restricted Cash (Topic 230), \whlch requires
that a statement of cash flows explain the change during the period in the total of cash, cash
equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents.
Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted, cash and restricted cash equivalents should
be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-
period total amounts shown on the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for fiscal years
beginning on or after December 15, 2018. The Organization adopted ASU No. 2016-18 In 2019,
and restated Its 2018 statement of cash flows to conform to the provisions thereof.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Organization have, been prepared in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles (U.S. GAAP), which require the Organization to report
information in the financial statements according to the following net asset classifications:

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and the Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary In nature; those restrictions will be met by actions
of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual In nature,
whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets are reported at fair value at the date the
promise is received, which is then treated as cost. The gifts are reported as net assets with donor
restrictions if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets.
When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction Is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified as net assets without
donor restrictions and reported in the statements of operations and changes in net assets as net
assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are met in the
same year as received are reflected as contributions, without donor restrictions in the
accompanying financial statements. .

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as net assets without
donor restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.
Gifts of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and
gifts of cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as net
assets with donor restrictions. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived
assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

-10-



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and iiabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and iiabilities at the date of the financiai statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

income Taxes

Both LHC and FLHG are public charities under Section 501(c)C3) of the Internal Revenue Code. As
public charities, the entities are exempt from state and federal income taxes on income earned in
accordance with their tax-exempt purposes. Unrelated business income is subject to state and
federal income tax. Management has evaluated the Organization's tax positions and concluded
that the Organization has ho unrelated business income or uncertain tax positions that require
adjustment to the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of business checking and savings accounts as well as petty
cash funds.

The Organization maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. The balances are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDiC) up to $250,000. At various times
throughout the year, the Organization's cash balances may exceed FDIC insurance. The
Organization has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk.

Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
outstanding balances. Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for uncollectible
accounts. In evaluating the collectibilily of patient accounts receivable, the Organization analyzes
its past collection history and Identifies trends for all funding sources in the aggregate. In additmn.
patient balances in excess of 120 days are 100% reserved. Management regularly reviews
revenue and payer mix data in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for uncollectible
accounts. Amounts not collected after ail reasonable collection efforts have been exhausted are
applied against the allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Grants and Other Receivables

Grants and other receivables are stated at the amount management expects to coiiect from
outstanding balances. All such amounts are considered collectible.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization receives a significant amount of grants from the U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS). As with all government funding, these grants are subject to reduction or
termination in future years. For the years ended September 30. 2019 and September 30, 2018,
grants from DHHS (including both direct awards and awards passed through other organizations)
represented approximately 76% and 76%, respectively, of grants, contracts and contributions
revenue.

Investment In Limited Liability Company

The Organization is one of eight partners who each made a capital contribution of $500 to Primary
Health Care Partners (PHCP), The purposes of PHGP are: (i) to engage and contract directly with
the payers of health care to influence the design and testing of emerging payment
methodologies: (ii) to achieve the three part aim of better care for individuals, better health for
populations and lower growth in expenditures in connection with both governmental and non»
governmental payment systems; (iii) to undertake joint activities to offer access to high quality,
cost effective medical, mental health, oral health, home care and other community-based services,
based upon the medical home model of primary care delivery, that promote health and well-being
by developing and implementing effective clinical and administrative systems in a manner that is
aligned with the FQHC model; and to lead collaborative efforts to manage costs and improve the
quality of primary care services delivered by health centers operated throughout the state of New
Hampshire; and (iv) to engage in any and all lawful activities, including without limitation the
negotiation .of contracts, agreements and/or arrangements (with payers and other parties). The
Organization's investment in PHCP is reported using the equity method and the investment
amounted to $19,101 and $22,590 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Assets Limited as To Use

Assets limited as to use include cash and cash equivalents set aside under loan agreements for
repairs and maintenance on the real property collateralizing the loan, assets designated by the
Board of Directors for specific projects or purposes and donor-restricted contributions as
discussed further in Note 7. .

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment acquisitions are recorded at cost, less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation Is provided over the estimated useful life of each class of depreciable asset and is
computed on the straight-line method.,

Patient Service Revenue *.

Patient service revenue Is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payers, and others for services rendered, Including estimated retroactive adjustments under
reimbursement agreements with third-party payers. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as
final settlements are determined.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

34DB Drug Pricing Program

LHC as an FQHC, Is eligible to participate in the 3408 Drug Pricing Program. The program
requires drug manufacturers to provide outpatient drugs to FQHCs and other identified entities at a
reduced price. LHC contracts with local pharmacies under this program. The local pharmacies
disoense drugs to eligible patients of LHC and bill insurances on behalf of LHC. Reimbursement
received by the pharmacies is remitted to LHC net of dispensing and administrative fees. Revenue
generated from the program is included in patient service revenue net of third-party allowances.
The cost of drug replenishments and contracted expenses incurred related to the program are
included in other operating expenses.

P^inctlonal Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one of, more
programs or supporting functions of the Organization. Expenses which are allocated between
program services and administrative support include employee benefits which are allocated based
on direct wages, facilities and related costs which are allocated based upon square footage
occupied by the program, and direct program support (billing and medical records) which is 100/o
attributable to healthcare services.

nftficlencv of Revenue Over Expenses

The consolidated statements of operations reflect the deficiency of revenue over expenses.
Changes in net assets without donor restriction which are excluded from this measure include
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired using contributions which, by donor
restriction, were to be used for the purposes of acquiring such assets) and changes in fair value of
an interest rate swap that qualifies for hedge accounting.

Subsequent Events

For ourooses of the preparation of these financial statements, management has considered
transactions or events occurring through January 17, 2020, the date that the financial staternerits
were available to be issued. IVlanagement has not evaluated subsequent events after that date for
inclusion in the financial statements.

2. Availability and Liquidity of Financial Assets

The Organization regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. The Organization has various sources of liquidity at its disposal,
including cash and cash equivalents and a line of credit. .

The Organization had working capital of $1,714,485 and $1,707,053 at September 30. 2019 and
2018 respectively. The Organization had average days cash and cash equivalents on hand
(based on normal expenditures) of 31 and 32 at September 30. 2019 and 2018. respectively.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Financial assets available for general expenditure within one year as of September 30 were as
follows:

2019 2018

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,422,407 $ 1,341.015
Patient accounts receivable, net 1,237,130 1,330,670
Grants receivable 452,711
Other receivables — 236|798 172,839

Financial assets available $ 3,073,496

The Organization has certain board-designated assets limited to use which are available for
general expenditure within one year in the normal course of operations upon obtaining approval
from the Board of Directors. Accordingly, these assets have not been included in the qualitative
information above. The Organization has other assets limited to use for donor-restricted purposes,
which are more fully described in Note 7, are not available for general expenditure within the next
year and are not reflected in the amounts above.

The Organization's goal is generally to have, at the minimum, the Health Resources and Services
Administration recommended days cash and cash equivalents on hand for operations of 30 days.

The Organization has a $1,000,000 line of credit, as.discussed In more detail In Note 5.

3. Patient Accounts Receivable

Patient accounts receivable consisted of the following:

2019 ■ 2018

Patient accounts receivable $ 1,397,194 $ 1,386,791
Contract 340B pharmacy program receivables 7S.586 —T 97,976

Total patient accounts receivable 1,472,780 1,584,767
Allowance for doubtful accounts —(235,6$Q) —(254,Q97)

Patient accounts receivable, net $ 1,237,13g $ 1,330,67g

A reconciliation of the allowance for uncollectible accounts follows:

2019 2018

Balance, beginning of year 5 254,097 $ 233,455
Provision for bad debts 398,644 354.460
write-offs (416.991) (333.81$)

.  . 8 235.650 S 254 097
Balance, end of year ^

-14-



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

The Organization grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local residents
and are insured under third-party payer agreements. Primary payers representing 10% or more of
the Organization's gross patient accounts receivable are as follows:

2019 2018

Medicare 17%
Medicaid Wt
Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield * "l 3 «

* less than 10%

4. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following:

2019 2018

Land and improvements $ 1,154,753 $ 1.154,753
Building and Improvements 11,048,899 10,943.714
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 1,799,63$ 1,723,627

Total cost 14.003.288 13,822.094
Less accumulated depreciation 6,$67,847 ^i^?7.171

7.335,441 7,584.923

Construction in progress —273,137 :

Property and equipment, net $ 7.608,671 $ 7.664.921

During 2019, the Organization began to make renovations to the clinical building in Newmarket.
New Hampshire. The project Is estimated to cost approximately $780,000 and is expected to be
completed and placed in service In December 2019. The project has been funded primarily
through donor restricted contributions and debt.

The Organization has made renovations to certain buildings with federal grant funding. In
accordance with the grant agreements, a Notice of Federal Interest (NFI) was filed in the
appropriate official records of the jurisdiction in which the property is located. The NFI Is designed
to notify any prospective buyer or creditor that the Federal Government has a financial iriterest in
the real property components acquired under the aforementioned grant; that the property may not
be used for any purpose Inconsistent with that authorized by the grant program statute and
applicable regulations; that the property may not be mortgaged or otherwise used as collateral
without the written permission of the Associate Administrator of the Office of Federal Assistance
[Management (OFAM). Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA); and that the
property may not be sold or transferred to another party without the written permission of the
Associate Administrator of OFAM and HRSA.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

5. Line of Credit

The Organization has an available $1,000,000 revolving line of credit from a local bank through
May 31 2021. with an interest rate of 5.50%. The line of credit is collateralized by all business
assets. There was no outstanding balance as of September 30, 2019 and 2018.

6. Lona«Term Debt

Long-term debt consists of the following:

2019 2018

Promissory note payable to local bank; see terms outlined
below. $ . 861,934 $ 875,506

5.375% promissory note payable to United States Department of
Agriculture, Rural Development (Rural Development), paid In- -
monthly installments of $4,949. which includes interest,
through June 2026. The note Is collateralized by all tangible
property owned by the Organization. The note was paid off
through refinancing that Is effective In October 2019: see
details below. 336,509 371,976

4.75% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $1,892, which includes interest,
through November 2033. The note Is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 231,091 242.438

4.375% promissory note payable to Rural Development, paid in
monthly installments of $5,000, which includes interest,
through December 2036. The note is collateralized by all
tangible property owned by the Organization. The note was
paid off through refinancing that is effective in October 2019;
see details below. 718.732 746.431

Total long-term debt 2,137,266 2,236,351
Less current maturities 106.190 102.014

Long-term debt, less current maturities $ 2.031,076 $ 2.134,3^

The Organization has a promissory note with a local bank which is a ten-year balloon note to be
paid at the amortization rate of 30 years, with monthly principal payments of $1,345 plus interest at
85% of the one-month LIBOR rate plus 2.125% through January 2022 when the balloon payment
is due. The note Is collateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2022 that limits the potential Interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 4.13%. The fair value of the interest rate swap agreement was an
asset of $13,512 and a liability of $13,404 at September 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND.FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

Effective October 2. 2019, the Organization obtained a $2,100,000 note payable with a local bank,
which repaid the notes payable due to Rural Development in the amount of $1,285,332, and the
additional financing was used to renovate the Organization's Newmarket clinical building as
discussed in Note 4. The note has a ten-year balloon and Is to be paid at the amortization rate of
30 years, with monthly principal payments plus interest at the greater of the Wail Street Journal
Prime rate or the weighted average of the rate of overnight Federal funds with members of the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York plus 0;5% through October 2029 when the balloon payment Is
due The note is coilateralized by the real estate. The Organization has an interest rate swap
agreement for the ten-year period through 2029 that limits the potential interest rate fluctuation
and essentially fixes the rate at 3.173%.

The Organization is required to meet certain administrative and financial covenants under various
loan agreements included above. The Organization failed to meet one of those loan covenants at
September 30. 2019 and has received a waiver of default from the bank.

Maturities of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter (adjusted for the refinancing as
discussed above) are as follows:

2020 ^ 106,190
2021 50,703
2022 832,321

28,439

2024 29.264
Thereafter 1,090.269

Total _

7. Net Assets

Net assets without donor restrictions are designated for the following purposes:

Undesignated
Repairs and maintenance on the real properly collateralizing
Rural Development loans

Board-designated for ^
Transportation
Working capital
Building improvements

Total

2019 2018

S 7,019,181 $ 7,377,112

142,092 142,092

16,982 16,982

1,391,947 1.391,947

1.162.006 1.132.896

$ 9.732.208 $10,061,029
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Septehfiber 30, 2019 and 2018

Net assets with donor restrictions were restricted for the following specific purposes:

2019 2018

Temporary in nature:
Capital improvements $  326,667 $  231,436

Community programs 181,161 54,643

Substance abuse prevention 28.388 25.067

Total $  536.106 $  311.146

Patient Service Revenue

Patient service revenue was as follows for the years ended September 30:

2P19 2018

Gross charges $13,786,408 $13,683,357

340B contract pharmacy revenue 1.139.085 1.327.156

Total gross revenue 14,926,493 15,010,513

Contractual adjustments (4,793,060) (4.534,268)

Sliding fee discounts (964,485) (1,030,666)

Other discounts 124.180) f19.394)

Total patient service revenue S 9.143.788 $ 9.426.185

The mix of gross patient sen/ice revenue from patients and third-party payers was as follows for
the years ended September 30:

2019 2018

Medicare 17% 17 %

Medicaid 31 % 27 %

Blue Cross Blue Shield 17% 18 %

Other payers 21 % 24 %

Self pay and sliding fee scale patients 14 % 14 %

100 % 100 %

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare. Medicaid and 340B programs are complex and
subject to interpretation. The Organization believes that it is in compliance with all laws and
regulations. Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government
review and interpretation, as well.as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties and
exclusion from the Medicare, Medicaid and 340B .programs. Differences between amounts
previously estimated and amounts subsequently determined to be recoverable or payable are
included In patient service revenue in the year that such amounts become known.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

A summary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payers follows:

Medicare

The Organization is reimbursed for the care of qualified patients on. a prospective basis, with
retroactive settiements related to vaccine costs only. The prospective payment is based on a
qeographicaily-adjusted rate determined by federal guidelines. Overali. reimbursement was and
continues to be subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization's Medicare cost
reports have been audited by the Medicare administrative contractor through September 30, 2018.

Medicaid and Other Pavers

The Organization is reimbursed by Medicaid for the care of qualified patients on a jDrospective
basis Overall reimbursement Is subject to a maximum allowable rate per visit. The Organization
also has entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance carriers, health
maintenance organizations and preferred provider organizations. Under these arrangements, the
Organization is reimbursed based on cpntractually obligated payment rates which may be less
than the Organization's public fee schedule.

Charitv Care

The Orgianization provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under its sliding fee discount
policy without charge or at amounts less than its established rates. Because the Organization does
not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as net
patient service revenue. The Organization estimates the costs associated with providing charity
care by calculating the ratio of total cost to total charges, and then multiplying that ratio by the
qross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to patients eligible for free care. The
estimated cost amounted to approximately $1,053,562 and $1,041,596 for the years ended
September 30, 2019 and 2018. respectively.

The Organization is able to provide these services with a component of funds received through
local community support and federal and state grants.

9. Retirement Plan

The Organization has a defined contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b).
The Organization contributed $300,572 and $157,605 for the years ended September 30. 2019
and 2018. respectively. The Organization's Board of Directors voted to suspend the employer
contributions to the plan in April 2018 and resume contributions in January 2019 subsequent to the
adoption of revisions to the employer contribution component of the plan documents.
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

September 30, 2019 and 2018

10. Medical Malpractice

The Organization is protected from medical malpractice risk as an FQHC under the. Federal Tort
Claims Act (FTCA). The Organization has additional medical malpractice insurance, on a claims-
made basis, for coverage outside the scope of the protection of the FTCA. As of September 30.
2019, there v/ere no known malpractice claims outstanding which, in the opinion of management,
will be settled for amounts In excess of both FTCA and.medical malpractice insurance coverage,

nor are there any unasserted claims or incidents which require loss accrual. The Organization
-  intends to renew medical malpractice insurance coverage on a claims-made basis and anticipates
that such coverage will be available.

■11. Litigation

From time-to-tlme certain complaints are filed against the Organization In the ordinary course of
business. Management vigorously defends the Organization's actions in those cases and utilizes
insurance to cover material losses. In the opinion of management, there are no matters that will
materially affect the Organization's consolidated financial statements.

-20--



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2019

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Health Care. Health Care,

Inc. Inc.

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable
Other receivables •
Inventory

Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Fair value of interest rate swap
Property and equipment, net

Total assets

$  453,924 $  968,483 $ - $ 1,422,407

1.237,130 - - 1,237,130

452,711 - - 452,711

236,798 59,797 (59,797) 236,798

81,484 - - 81,484

78.405 _ . 78.405

2,540.452 1,028,280 (59,797) 3.508,935

19,101 _ . 19,101

2,861,010 82,704 -■ 2.943,714
13,512 - - 13,512

5.718.217 1.890.361 - 7.608.578

$11,152,292 a 3.001.345 $ f59.7971 $14,093,840

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 701,615 $

961Accrued payroll and related expenses
Deferred revenue
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt, less current maturities

Total liabilities

Net assets
Without donor restrictions
With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

.024
85,418

$  (59,797) $ 64L818
961,024

85.418
40.773

1,813,474 40,773 (59;797) 1,794.450

,1.122.027 909.049 2.031.076

2 935.501 949.822 f59.797) 3.825.526

7,680,685
536.106

2.051,523 - 9.732.208
536.108

8.216.791 2.051.523 10.268.314

$11,152,292 $ 3.001.345 $' f59.797) $14,093,840
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE. INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Balance Sheet

September 30, 2018

ASSETS

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare. Health Care. 2018

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Patient accounts receivable, net
Grants receivable

Other receivables
Inventory

Other current assets

Total current assets

Investment in limited liability company
Assets limited as to use

Property and equipment, net

Total assets $1^21^ $ 2.9e8.74? ■ $14.Q98,146

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities ^ ..-ooorv c «
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ q^q Rqn " 919 690
Accrued payroll and related expenses 919.690 - yiy.^y^
Deferred revenue r.o-7 nno'ni/i
Current maturities of long-term debt

656,379 $ 684.636 $ 1.341.015

1.330.670 - 1.330.670

228.972 - 228,972

172,839 - 172,839

72.219 - 72,219

139.568 - 139.568

2,600.647 684.636 3.285.283

22,590 _ 22,590

2.920.876 ^ 284.474 3,205.350

5.585.290 1.999.633 7.584.923

63.027 38.987- 102.014

Total current liabilities
1.539.243 ■ 38.987 1.578.230

Long-term debt, less current maturities
fair value of interest rate swap ; Liauft

Total liabilities _2J3ZJ£2 989.869 3,729.971

Withoufdonor restrictions 8,081,155 1,979,874 10,061,029
With donor restrictions 311.146 ; 311,146.

Totalnet assets -M22^ JJ29.SZ4 10.372,175

Total liabilities and net assets $ 2.968,743 $14,098,146
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue

Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

Rental income

Grants, contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for
operations

Total operating revenue

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased sen/ices .

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

. Depreciation
Interest expense

Total operating expenses

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets
without donor restrictions

Lamprey

Friends of

Lamprey

Health Care Health Care.

Inc. • Inc.

2019

Eliminations Consolidated

$ 9,143,768 $
f398.544> .

8,745,224

6,104,270
1,637,475

75.197

10.584.157
1.993,787
646,774

1.731,860
808,327
694,558

145,114

351,790

64.197

(458,398)

26,916

31.012

227,916

103

(227,916)

-  $ 9.143.768

^ • f398.544)

8,745.224

6.104,270

1,637,578

75.197

16.562.166 228.019 (227.9161 16.562.269

128

300

3.012

109,272

43.658

(227,916)

10,584,157

1,993,787
646,774

1,731,988
580,711
697,570

145,114

461,062
107.855

17.020.564 156.370 (227.9161 16.949.018

71,649 (386,749)

26,916

31.012

$  (400.4701 $ 71.649 . $. ^ $ (328.8211
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Lamprey
Health Care.

Inc.

Friends of

Lamprey
Health Care,

Inc. Eliminations

2018

Consolidated

Operating revenue
Patient service revenue
Provision for bad debts

Net patient service revenue

$ 9.426,185

f354.4601

$ $ $ 9,426,185

(354.4601

9,071,725 - - 9,071,725

Rental income
Grants,-contracts and contributions
Other operating revenue
Net assets released from restrictions for
operations

r * ■

5,538,925
769.148

118.447

227,916

92

(227.916)
5.538.925
769,240

118.447

Total operating revenue 15.498;245 228.008 (227.9161 15.498.337

Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Employee benefits
Supplies
Purchased services

Facilities

Other operating expenses
Insurance

Depreciation
Interest

Total operating expenses

9,941,188
1,688,571
715.784

1,569,171

816,102
535,414

143:338
353,293
60.447

78

156

6,169
2,000

106,423
35.984

(227,916)

.  9,941,188
1.688,571
715,862

1,569,327
594,355
537,414

143,338

459:716

96.431

15.823.308 150.810 (227.9161 15.746.202

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over
expenses (325,063) 77,198 - (247,865)

Change in fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for

capital acquisition

365

16.651

• ■ 365

16.651

(Decrease) increase In net assets
without donor restrictions S  (308.0471 S  77.198 $ S  (230.8491
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes In Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Net assets without donor restrictions
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change in fair value of Interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

(Decrease) Increase in net assets without donor
restrictions

Net assets v^th donor restrictions
Contributions
Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net'assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare, Health Care, 2019

Inc. Inc. Consolidated

$  (458,398) $ 71,649 $ (386.749)

' 26,916 26,916

31.012 31.012

(400.4701 71.649 (328.8211

205,027 - 205,027

126,142 - 126,142

(75,197) - (75,197)

(31.0121 (31.0121

224.960 224.960

(175,510) 71,649 (103,861)

8.392.301 1.979.874 10.372.175

$ 8.216.791 $ 2.051.523 $10,268,314
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LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC. AND FRIENDS OF LAMPREY HEALTH CARE, INC.

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended September 30, 2018

Net assets without donor restrictions
(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses
Change In fair value of interest rate swap
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition

(Decrease) increase in net assets without
donor restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions
Contributions

Grants for capital acquisition
Net assets released from restrictions for operations
Net assets released from restrictions for capital

acquisition '

Decrease in net assets with donor restrictions

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Friends of

Lamprey Lamprey
Healthcare. .Health Care. 2018

inr Inc. Consolidated

i  (325,063) $
365

77,198 $  (247,865)
365

16.651 16.651

f308.047) 77.198 ■  f230.849^

71,205

16,651
(118,447)

-
71,205

16,651
(118,447)

ne.esi) n6.651)

f47.2421 f47.242)

(355.289). 77,198 (278,091)

R 747.590 1.902.676 10.650.266

a 8.392.301 $ 1.979.874 S10.372.175
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Home: Gregory A. White, CPA Work:

SurrimaW

Senior Level Executive with extensive.hands-on experience in management, business leadership, and
working with boards, banks ancl.other external stake holders. -A CPA with an'established record of success
in Community Health, Center management. Strong in budgets, cash-forecasts, grants, and team leadership.

Professional Experience.

Lamprey Health Care - Newmarket, NH 2013 to present

Chief Executive Officer

•  Responsible for the leadership,,operation and dve.rairstrajcgic.dircction of New Hampshire's^
.  ingest Federally Qualified Health Center.

• • .'Ertsuring'continuity.and,high quality primai7 rnedical.car.eHn'three..sit« both urbaii rural,'servirig
over.16,000 patients in-40 conimLiruties.

Leading a higli performing senior management tearii in the direction of over I S.O.staff a:nd
providers.

•  Engagihg vvith.leaders and.stakeholders at the local, state and national levels to .ensure that
Larnprey is at the forefront ofinnovative, high qu^ity health care,delivery.

Lowell Commuhi^ Health Center - Lowell, MA 2009 to 2013
Chief Financial .Officer

•  Responsible for the integrity of financial information and^yslems for this .Federally Qualified
. Health Center, employing 315 staff and providing over .120,000 visits annually. Upgraded:
financiai. and administrative infrastmcture to mee't requirements diifing a 'time of rapid expansion.

•  Lead the fmancing and budgetdevelopmeht fbr a$42 million capital facility project to include;.
.traditionM debt, muitiple tax credit sources, .fedeVal-grants, loan guarantees, and .private funds.

Directed key projects for: 340(b) pharmacy implementation; 403(b) tax deferred savings plah;..
riiulliple federal stimulus grarits; and revised opefatihg budget, devclopmehf.

•• Representative to the Lowell General PHO for managed care contract negotiation

•  Recruited'and mahaged'a tearti offive directors to oversee and manage .four support and one-
"programmatic department

;Miuichcstef Comniuhity Health Ceiiter-,Manchester NH 1999 t6'2009

'.Chief Financial OfficeY"

•  . Recruited by .the CEp to bViiig sfriicture and process to "the functional areas of the Center's
financial operations: Provided direction and oversight to key business areas; General
Admiriisjraiion, Patiehi Registration, Human Resources, FTCA/Legal and Medical Records.



Home: Gfeenrv A/White.. ClPA 'Work:,

• Responsible foV the;deVelbpmei)t of key programs, Cofporate'Compliance, HlPAA. seleclionpf a
new practice management systeni. SuppoiledJoint-Con-uTiissiori accreditation and the
.implementation of ah eleclrbnic medical record system.

.• Led the develbpment of financing.for the Center's new.facility. '

GrWtef Lawrence Family Health .Center^Lawrence, MA 1993 to 199.8

'CphtroIIer 1997tol?98

Accounting Manager "1^95 to 1997

;Senior Accountant/Analyst 1993 to 1995

Progressively responsible for ajl day to day financial,operations pf a'Federaljy Qualified'Health
' 'Center; including: Accounts Payable,'PayroH, General Ledger, Cash Management, Cost

Reporting,.'Patient Accounts; and Jihancial Reporting. Presented budgets, analysis, projections' and.
.periodic reporting tp;.th'e Bp^d pf-pireciors.

y. .Key leader for plojectslnvplyihg:; selection of hew financial accouhtjhg soflvvarC; selection.of new
.practice management system; provider productivity measurement and analysis and group
purchasing. :Oversaw budget pf$5.m'iljiph construction project.

Developed-rei'rnb.ursem'ent model for amihridyatiye Family Practice'Residency pfpgram.

■Alexander, Arorison, Finning & Co,, CPA's - Westbo.roiigh, MA 1990 to 1993'
;Siaff Accountant/Auditor

. Eduea'tion & Professional Affiliations
Babson College, Wellesley, MA

■ ^BS, Acpounting ̂  '1990

Commohwealth'of Massacliusetts

■Certified Public,Accp

^ Healthcare FinanciarManagehicht Assbciatioh
Certified Healthcare Financial Professional -,2008.

National Association of CTC
Excel.Leadership Program = 20Q3
National Registr^' of Emergency Medical Technicians
'EMT r N;H. license number" 18991:1

' t '

BoardsvAdvisorv & VoluhtccFExncncncc
.Massachusetts' League^of Community H^ Cjeniers -rSpecial Fihancp Conimittee
l^H Health Access Netw6rlc--.A'dmihistra^ & Tfaihihg".C.bmmittee



Hprne'v. Gregory A; White, CPA Work;

CoiTunuiiity Health Access".Network --Bg£u:d of Directors^ Finance Comrnittee

.B.i^Slate Prinriary Gare Association - Board of Directors, Capital finance & Siistainabiiity, Prospecti ve
Payment

Primary Care Partners^, LLC - Board of Managenieni

-The Way Home - Manchester, NH - Board of TrUstees:^ Treasurer

'Manchester Sustainable AcCess'Pfoject -Data Sub-group

•Milford Ambulance Service-Volunteer EMT, StrdfOfficOr, Treasurer, Building Advisory.Committee

Mi.l'ford.Educalional Foundation - .1999 to-lO 1,0 - Treasurer

.Heritage United Way—Manchester - COnimiinity investment Commiliee.

Milfoid Cdrrimunit)' Athletic 'Association,^-.Coach

La'sell College-T-,Co-Resident;Director ' ^



;Eyalie M. Crosby, CPA, FHFiViA

'0

SiimmatT of Qualificatibns ̂

Thirty-lhree years professional 'accounting and healthcare finance-,experience including audit,
residential mental health, and criiical access hospital rhanagerial experience. 'Responsibilities
have included extensive invplvement in third-party contract, negotiations, budgeting, strategic
planning, financial ̂ alysis of'strategic initiatives; independent financial audit and'IRS Form 99,0
vcdbrdinatiori .and fiill responsibility for preparation arid filing of Medicare and Medicaid-Cost-
Reports; Served in:a!l executive positions in NHVf:HFM.A provided significant exposure to PPS
' hospital arid NI-J and VThealthc'^e organization executive and managerial level leadefS;

Experience

,'Aiice Peck Day Health System, Lebanon, NH
Vice President of Finance/.Cbief Financial Officer (2b09-Prcserit).

:Senior Executive of Finance for Health System comprised of Alice Peck Day Memorial Hospital,
iriade up, of a 2-5 bed Critical Access T-Iospital and 11. wholly owned Physician Practices arid.
Alice Peck-Llfec^e, a senior living facility with •ed indeperident living units, ,6(5 assisted living,
units Md 7 2^/7 -supervised nursing units. 'Responsible for 6 direct repprtiand 69 employees-
.from Revenue .Cycle, Patient Access/Patieht AccoLih'ts, Coding, Health .Triformatipn, Materials:
Management, Fiscal Services and LifecarriBusiness-,Seryices^ to Senior Level restrucfuririg
CFO was .responsible for IT/IS/^d l^sldCompjW^ ' ' . < '

•  Resporisible for 'overall finmicial -and fiscal management aspects of Health .Systems,
■Hospital andLifecafe opefationsincluding accounting, b.udgetary.fax and other.fmancial
pldinLng activities within, the health system prgariizatipns;
Create, c6ordina.te, '?uid evaluate the.financial pfo'grairis aiid supporting iaformatiori
systemsno" include.budgeting, tax planiiing; real;"estate, arid tbnservatiori of asse"ts^

•  Approve and coordinafe changes and improvements in automated fmahciai and
riianagement-infbfmation systems for the organizations pfthe Health Systems'.

•  Ensure compliance with local, state,-^'d federaPfinancial reporting requiiements.\
Coordmate the prep^ation'o'f financial statements, finaiici'ai reports. Medicare Gpst-,
•Reports, -990 .Tax. Returns,:special ari^yses, arid Inforrriation reports.-

. • D{iyeiop and implement finance, accQ,uritmg,''biUlhg, and auditing procedures.
- • Establish aiid niaintain appropriate internal;contrdl.'safeguards.:
•  Gojitribute.finahcial.expertis the plaiuiihg oT'riew services that generate additional

'Sources,of revenue.
■  -l^anage costs by coritinually seekiiig data th'af will id'entity oppprtuhities that eliminate

npri-.varue cpsts.m cprijunctipn.with the'Seni^^^^ Leadership Te^s of-the HospitaJ and
Lifecafe. *" " .



• Analyzes are^lh pj^ing, promoting and conducting org^anization^wide performance
improvement activities.

•  Interact with..other managers to proyide consultative support to planning initiatives
through financial and managemerit-information analyses, reports., and recommendations,

• Develop and direct the implementation of strategic business and/or operational plans,
projects, programs,^d systems, in conjunction with other ,members of Ihe Setiiof
Leadership Teams.

•  Establish and implement short- and long-range departmental goals,objectives, policies,
.and operating procedures.

'• Negotiate and execute tliird party payof contracts.,
.• Represenfthe health system at meetings including medical staff, boaird pftrustee

'meetings, New Hanfpshire Hospital Association, New England Alliance for Health, and
other relevant community meetings as needed.

• Represent the cornpany externally to /media, government agencies, funding agencies^ and
:the general" public.

•  ■Recruit„traini supervisej.^d-evalyate departmeht staff.

Mt. Ascutney Hospital and Health Center, "Windsor, VT
Budgeting and ReirhbursementMahager.and Controller (2001-2009)
Progressive .managerial experience ranging, frpni budgef ^d feimbursement, manager to
Cpntfdller and succession plaii that would transition to Chief Financial' Officer. Directly
supervise''4-employees in Finance and serve-as backup supervisor for 30 employeesiin.four
departments reporting to the ,Chief Financial Officer including Materials- Management; IT,
Patient Access/and Patient Accounts.

•  Plan, organize and-coordinate ^ual budget process for Critical Access Hospital.,
Process involves collection and distribution of departmental, historical Voluraei revenue
and.expense data; supporting .deparfmenl. heads in the development-of their operating,
budgets; performing fmahcial analysis on-proposed changes in services; and presenting
proposed budget for approval by the Bo,^d 'of trustees Finance and Audit Committee.
Prepared and cpbrclinated the preseiitation of the.Hqspitars proposed-budget before the
.■State of "Venhpiit Banking, Insurance,, Securities and Healthcare- Adrhinistration
(BISHCA) and Public.Qversight Comrhissipn (POC); '

•  .Serve as Hospital's-direct finance contacrfor BISHGA staff, Medicaid Personnel, CMS'
personiiel, and dtlier contract agencies and third party payors.

•• Prepare ann.u^ Medicare and Medicaid Cost Report filings arid ^all supporting
dppumentation.

•  Coordinate armual Rriancial audit process and 'serve'.as.hospital's primary contact for all.
[external audit engagetnenls mcluding'but not limited to, Independent ,Fmancial Auditois^
Medicaid Audit6rs\^d.M'edicare Auditors.

•  Develop, and presehtTmance ■workshops for clinical departnieni heads.. Serve .as primary
contact in the finance area for clinicat department heads. Participate in Senior
'Management-Tearn 'nieetings. Participate in rn'rinthly Board of Trustee Finance and Audit

-  'Comriiittce meetings. '
'  ,• Tmplemented decision support softw^e system which has successftilly led to autorhatioh

of monthly departmental v^iance reporting as well as-much of the annual budget process.-



•  'Responsible for. updating and maintenance of Revenue Jind Estimated ThiM Party
iSettlenierit Models which are integral to the budgeting and monthly reporting processes.

Namaqua Center, Lovelaod, CO
'Chief Financial Ofricer.(1598-2001)
.'Responsible for the evaluation of automated'accouhtirig systems as well as the uitunate selection

■and implementation-of the system. Directly supervised 3 employees and responsible for.all
aspects of the financial performance of the .agency. Served as, liaison with regulatory agencies,

■ bofh for written reporting ̂ d on-site surveys^
• Developed fuli accounting policies and procedures .manual for the agency.-.
• Direct contact for Independent Auditors and'State.'Regulatory Agencies involved "in

financial oversight of tlie Agency's.pperations and effectiveness.
•  Assured timely and;complete Medicaid Cost .Reports and .School Department Reporting

packages. * • .-
•  Coordinated exteiisivdiQuality Iraprpvement Project around third .party reporting and.

billing. ^ •

Evalie M. Crosby, CPA
Principal (1985-1997)
BuiUta full public accoiiiiting-,practice se'rv'icirig. primarily small business, not'for profit .and
individual clients. Successfully -represented 'clients ibefbre fhe Internal 'Revenue Service/State;
Departments of'Revenue, iState Depaiiraents of .Employrhent and' Training, >and Workers
Gompensation Insurers! Negoliate'd financing for clients with'financial institutions and a'.variety
•ofEederal.ajid State Grant agencies. ' ■ - .

,• Proyided monthly accpurilingsand bookkeeping services.
•  Provided quarterly .and annual payi;ol! ^d incorpe tax filihg.assistance.-

. • Consulted with clients on' the selection, installation and implementation of autornated
accounting-systerns.

i)eIoitte Hhskihs'+ Sellsi'Bdstori, MA
Healthcare Audit Team, (1982-1985)

•  .SeiVed in a -variety of capacities from audit staff to .audit.senior on the Healthcare Audit'
Te,^ for a majpr pubhc accounting firni in Boston, MA.

•  Planned, organized and .superyised.audilspn a varietyof healthcare engagements;
•  Served as amem'ber of,the initial DH+S'team for Brigham and Women's Hospiihl and

New England Deaconess Hospital engagements.

Education

Master of Science in Accouritihg 1982
Nprtheaslerri JJniversity Graduate,School' of Professibnai Accounting, Boston, MA

'Bachelor pf. Arts - Ecphomics,-
Tufts University; Medfbrd,.MA



Sue Durkin

Lamprey Health Care October 2018 - Present

Chief of Clinical Services June 2019 - Present
Provide oversight of operations and quality within all clinical services including primary care, prenatal
care, behavioral health, Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT), Breast and Cervical Cancer Program
(BCCP), diabetes education, care coordination and psychiatry. Responsible for program development;
preparing grant applications and reports; and assuring compliance with state, federal, and funding
requirements within these programs. Provide oversight of the quality department, risk management, and
NCQA Patient Centered Medical Home recognition process. Oversee the activities of the safety
committee and the emergeiicy preparedness plan.

Director of Quality Improvement and Population //tviWi October 2018 - June 2019
Responsible for the overall leadership and administratiori of the perfonnance, iinproveinent and quality
program of the organization, including: supported the Board of Director's strategic organizational
initiatives; developed appropriate strategies for evidence based practices for improving clinical operations
and outcomes measures related to Uniform Data Systems (UDS) and NCQA Patient Centered Medical
Home.

Families First Health and Support Center September 1998 - August 2019

C/m/crt/ January 2015 - August 2019
Responsible for the development and oversight of all clinical programs including primary care, Health
Care for the Homeless, prenatal, well child, Medication Assisted Treatment (MAT), care coordination,
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program (BCCP), Hepatitis C treatment, and the integration of psychiatry
within primary care. Oversaw quality improvement, reporting, risk management, policy development,
systems development and management. Assured compliance with stale and federal regulations. Facilitated
training and staff development. Developed and maintained interagency collaborations. Participated in the
organization's management team, NCQA Patient Centered Medical Home work group, and the quality
improvement committee of the Board of Directors. Participated in grant development and management.

Health Care for the Homeless Program Director May 2011- January 2015
Provided overall organization, management, and delivery of quality patient care for the program.
Supervised staff. Participated in the organization's management team.

Health Care for the Homeless Program Nurse September 2005 - May 201 1
Provided primary nursing care to homeless patients in a mobile health setting.

Quality Improvement Director June 2001 - September 2011
Responsible for the organization's quality improvement program. Coordinated activities of the quality
improvement committee of the Board of Directors.

Clinical Operations Director September 1998 - June 2001
Provided oversight of clinical operations for the health center. Responsible for the organization's quality
improvement program. Participated in grant proposal development and reporting. Responsible for clinical
staffing and supervision.

11 P a g e Sue Durkin - Resume



VVcntworth-Douglass Hospital June 1997 - April 1999
StaffNurse/Charge Nurse/Per Diem Nurse

Provided primary nursing care to pediatric, adolescent, and adult patients. Perfonned and assisted In
outpatient procedures. Assumed charge nurse responsibilities as of November 1997.

Education:

Rivier College—St. Joseph's School of Nursing September 1995 - May 1997
A.D. Nursing, CPA 4.0

College of the Holy Cross September 1987 - May 1991
B.A. Sociology

Certifications/ Licenses:
Certified Profession in Healthcare Quality (CPHQ)
Registered Nurse in State of NH (RN)
Certified Asthma Educator (AE-C)
CPRCeitified

Certified Yoga Teacher (RYT 200)

Boards ofDirectors:
Seacoast Women's Giving Circle 2016 - Present
Prescott Park Arts Festival 2005- 2007

2 I P a g e Sue Durkin - Resume



Francine DeSalvo

Professional Summai7

Experienced healthcare pfofesslbnal with exceptional skills In practice managementi grant and
project managernent, process improvement and communications

•  Dedicated Glinica) fnformatics Specialist with 7 years of Ambulatory Care. Incentive Programs,
workflow redesign. IT planning,. Needs assessment and HIE connectivity

•  Ceriified Meaningful Use Specialist experience working with Medicare & Medicaid MU . MIPPS
incentive programs including AGO, PQRS, Patient Centered Medical Home, Critical Access
Hospitals, FQHC and Rural Health requirements

•  Billing .& Coding knowledge with focus oh IGD-10 requirements
•  Motivated, Leader with ability to lead through change takes initiative and presents in a friendly manner
•  Project Management including HRSA. SUND. PCGRi and State.grants providing oversight and
•  managernent of deliverables
•  Nursing Graduate v/lth special interest.jn primary care, surgical nursing and home heatthcare.

Professional Experience

Little Rivers Healthcare

Strategic Solutions Project Director
May 2017-October 2018

Responsiible for grant management and coordination, including recruitment, staffing and ensuring that
requirements of each grant was achieved and delivered to funding source. Blueprint Project Manager
responsible for supervision of Regional Coordinator and Care Coordinators. Provided direction to staff in
promoting resources to the patient community with assistance of financial, prevention, and education of
chronicconditions.
Provided oversight to Medication Assisted Therapy Prograrh leading Behavioral Health Team in coordination
of .group therapy, alternative resources and trauma informed care education to staff and the'community.

Vermont Informatiori Technology Leajders
E-Health Specialist
June 2013-May 2017

E-Health Specialist advisor to VermonfPractices and Hospitals providing assistance with EMR.selection,
focus op integration, cond.ucfs workflow redesigns, best practice solutions, data quality corhparisons, security
risk analysis, Meaningful use registration and attestation. Worked in collaboration with Vermont Blueprint for
Health, coordinated with VITL's HIE'.team tp assist practices \yith interface. HIE connectivity. .Provided
support to specialty, long term and.behavioral healthcare facilities.



Francine DeSalvo

Grace Cottage Hospital
Senior Director of Rural Health

May 2010-March 2013
Responsible for the operations of the hpspitars rural health center/ family practice (awarded Patient
Cehlered Medical, Home status) of 11 providers. Managed and directed staffing, scheduling and physician
support: project management; physician recruitment and compensation; staff, financial, project, safely and
information systems management; ensured regulatory and statutory requirements were successfully met.
Additionally: planned, directed and evaluated the daily operations of physician group practice. Provided
business and strategic oversight and direction to physician group

Springfield Medical Care Systems - Springfield, Vermont
Clinical Director of Rocklnghani Medical Group
July 2007-May 2010 .

Manager of Hospital owned Rural Health Clinic: provided administrative and budgetary leadership for 5
Physicians' practices, an urgent care clinic and support staff. Responsibilities included hiring, performance
evaluations, Oversight of Quality Improvernent projects, liaison between patients and providers.
Implementation of guidelines for Rural .Health and FQHC health center. Implementation of Allscripts EfylR.
Provided leadership in workflow redesign, integration, program build and implementation. Oversight of
annual budget and financial performance. Maintained efficiency in the practices, ensured quality assurance
and compliance within the clinic. . .

Surgical Practice Manager

Septe.mber 2001 to July"2007
Southern Vermont Health Service Cprp ~ Brattleboro, Vermont

Manager for corporate pwned surgipal. practices. Provided administrative and budgetary direction to the
practices in order to perform in an effective and cost efficient manrien Reported to the VP Planning Services,

hired evaluated practice staff. Interacted vyith the physicians to maintain patient and comniunity satisfaction.
Problem solved in ah independent manner.

Skill Highlights

Microsoft PowerPoint

Smart sheet Project Planning Application
Certified Billing & Coding'
All scripts Application
Cerner Power chart Application
EcW Electr'ohic Medical Record

Cerner Poy/er note Application

Education and Training

Certified Meaningful Use Professional, 4Med Approved
Certificate In Community Health Care Management, Antioch New England Graduate School - Keene, NH

Associate of Science: Nursing, Thompson School of Nursing - Brattleboro, VT



Tracy Tinker, MSN, RN, CNL, CPE

Summary

Master's prepared nurse with experience in the hospital setting, community health, as well as a corporate
arena. Experienced instructional designer and educator in clinical topics such as heart disease and
diabetes as well as selling skills.

Professional Experience

2010 to present, Diabetes Resources Institute at Catholic Medical Center, Manchester, NH
Certified Diabetes Nurse Educator
•  Educate clients, families, and staff on the pathophysiology of diabetes, diabetes technology, diabetes

medications, and diabetes complications
•  Serve as a diabetes knowledge resource for clinical staff and providers

2009 to Present, Healthcare for the Homeless Program of Manchester at Catholic Medical Center,
Manchester, NH

Community Health Nurse - Case Manager, QI and Chronic Disease Coordinator
•  Partner with a diverse client base to prioritize and meet their complex needs
• Assess, plan, and deliver individualized nursing care to clients
• Design and deliver client-focused health education in individual and group settings
•  Lead the Continuous Quality Improvement and Patient Centered Medical Home Teams
•  Participated in Grant Writing and reporting for Federal (UDS), State and Local Grants

1993 to 2008, Bristol-Myers Squibb Medlcallmaging, Billerica, MA
Senior Learning & Development Consultant

•  Led projects to implement eLeaming in the global sales, marketing, and manufacturing organizations.
• Created and implemented a divisionalTeaming management system (LMS) plan
•  Initiated and developed clinical turn-key kits for produet training and disease state management.
Clinical Manager, Radiopharmaceuticals Division

•  Trained physician and technologist customers on the use of radiopharmaceutical products
•  Two-time winner of top Sales and Marketing award. Executive Council, 1994 and 1997
•  Developed and delivered presentations for various internal and external customers
• Mentored three Clinical Specialist colleagues.

1989 - 1993, Cedars-Sinai Medical Center, Los Angeles, CA,
Technical Manager, Nuclear Cardiology

• Managed a department of 17 technologists that delivered physician directed clinical services
•  Participated in a research project for a new radiophannaceutical
•  Partnered with a local physician to conduct workshops for physicians and technologists in California

and Arizona

1986 - 1989, Maine Medical Center, Portland, ME,
Staff Technologist, Nuclear Medicine



Tracy Tinker, RN

Education and Certifications

November 2011, National Certification Board for Diabetes Educators
Certified Diabetes Educator (CDE)
December 2009, The American Association of Colleges of Nursing
Certified Nurse Leader (CNL)

2008 - 2009, University of New Hampshire

Direct Entry Master's in Nursing. Clinical Nurse Leader
CPA: 4.0

Mary Louise Fernald Nursing Research Symposium Award for Presentation Excellence for Capstone
Project "The Highs and Lows ofInsulin Therapyfor Inpdtients: A Comparison of Three Order Sets "
Member: Golden Key International Honor Society, Sigma Theta Tau, International Nursing Honor
Society

1998 - 2001, National Training Laboratories

Certificate in Experience-Based Learning and Training

• Applied concepts of adult learning to design classroom and blended learning solutions

1982 - 1986, Rochester Institute of Technology

Bachelor of Science, Clinical Sciences Nuclear Medicine
CPA: 3.67

•  Participated in an internship at three local hospitals,to learn nuclear medicine technology skills

Pro fcssional Presentations, Article, and Memberships

• Member: American Association of Diabetes Educators. Granite State Diabetes Educators, National
Healthcare for the Homeless Council

•  Chronic Disease Trainingfor Behavioral Health. 2018, Presentation created and delivered to various
Integrated Delivery Network participants across NH.

•  Adapting Your Practice: Treatment and Recommendations for Patients Who Are Homeless with
Diabetes Mellitus. HCH Clinicians Network, 2013, http://www.nhchc.org/wp-
content/uploads/2013/06/2013DiabetesGuidelines_FIN AL_20130612.pdf

• Highs and Lows of Insulin Therapyfor Inpatients: A Comparison of Three Order Sets, December
2009, Mary Louise Fernald Nursing Research Symposium, Durham, NH

•  A Systematic Approach to Online Testing, Thursday April 12, 2007, The eLeaming Guild 2007
Annual Gathering, Boston, MA

•  Building and Implementing an eLearning Solution Within a Global Learning Architecture, May 16,
2003, eLeaming Strategies for Pharmaceuticals, Brussels, Belgium

• Why computerized testing is preferred in business. In Criterion-referenced test development:
Technical and Legal Guidelines for Corporate Training (pp. 177-180). San Francisco: Pfeiffer



CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary

% Paid

from this

Contract

Amount Paid

from this

Contract

Greg White Chief Executive OITicer 206,410.36 0%

Evalie Crosby Chief Financial Officer 156,041.34 0%

Sue Durkin Chief of Clinical Services 122,399.94 5% 6.120.00

Fran DeSalvo Nashua Site Director 86,699.86 5% 4,334.99

Tracy Tinker Registered Nurse 82,160.00 5% 4,108.00


